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The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Corporate Profile Financial Highlights and Ratios

Yen:In millions except per stock data and percentages
U.S.dollars:In thousands except per stock data and percentages

Consolidated Non-Consolidated

- o March 31 2016 2015 2016 2016 2015
Together With the region or the years ende arc (Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) ~ (Thousands of U.S.dollars) (Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)
The Yamagata Bank Ltd. believes that contributing to the Ord!nary MOOME vvvvsssrrmmsrrm s ¥ 45,252 ¥ 45,970 $ 401,602 ¥ 307 ¥ 39,483
development of the regional economy and community through Ordl.nary EXPENSES «evrevrencemensencemcemcmmsmmenncenens 34,504 33,250 306,220 29,163 27,874
diverse activities is the fulfilment of its corporate social responsi- Net income attributable to owners of the parent ...... 6,714 7,483 59,584 6,685 7.280
bility (CSR) as a regional bank. The Bank is aiming to raise (Net income)
corporate value by fulfilling its CSR and to be a valuable bank for
the region which is the driving force of the new era. Amounts per stock

. NEt INCOME  +.vvviiiiiiiic ¥ 41.08 ¥ 45.62 $ 0.36 ¥ 4091 ¥ 44.39

Present local conditions Cash dividends declared during the year ......... - — — 7 6
Yamagata Prefecture iS the main bUSineSS area Of Yamagata Net ASSEIS i
Bank. The prefecture is located in the northern part of the main 904.81 900.00 8.03 905.22 890.31
island of Japan (Honshu), which is approximately 300 kilomet.ers As of March 31
north of Tokyo and three hours by rail on the Yamagata Shink-
ansen (bullet train). The prefecture is surrounded by the Ou Total @SSets «.vvveevvviiiiiiiiiiii ¥ 2,503,672 ¥ 2,466,878 $ 22,219,319 ¥ 2492023 ¥ 2452641
Mountain Range and the Sea of Japan with 70% of the prefec- Loans and bills discounted ................olll 1,584,509 1,470,267 14,062,026 1,593,372 1,479,318
tura_l Iahd being mountainous. YamagaTa City,. the prefecturgl Total liabilities .....coovviiii 2,347,728 2,312,184 20,835,356 2,344,078 2,307,123
capital is located in the Murayama Basin and is _the economic DEPOSITS  vvneerneenneeineeie ettt e eie e e e eieeanes 2,075,390 2,036,421 18,418,449 2,076,500 2,037,551
and cultural hub of the prefecture but respective specialist

Total net assets «ovvvvviiiii 155,944 154,694 1,383,962 147,945 145,518

economic zones have been formed in Okitama basin in the south
of Yamagata prefecture, Mogami basin in the north of the prefec-
ture and in the coastal area of the Shonai plains.

Ratios: 2016 2015 2016 2015

Yamagata City is close to Sendai City (Miyagi Prefecture) which Capital ratio (NOte 2) ....covvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii 12.77% 13.24% 12.31% 12.67%
is the largest in northern Honshu, and the distance between the
two cities in a straight-line across the Ou Mountain Range is only Kichishige Hasegawa Note 1:U.S.dollars represent transactions, for the convenience of readers, at ¥ 112.68=U.5.$1.00, the rate prevailing on March 31, 2016.

50 kilometers. The two cities have had long-term economic links, President
the goal of which is their mutual development. Note 2: Figures for 2015 and 2016 are shown according to domestic standards.
The Great East Japan Earthquake in 2011 caused immense
damage to the Pacific coast of northern Honshu, but the damage
to Yamagata Prefecture, which faces the Sea of Japan, was only Net Income Total Net Assets
slight. Subsequent to the earthquake, the transportation network (Millions of yen) (Billions of yen)
along the coast of the Sea of Japan is being redeveloped together
with the restoration and reconstruction in devastated areas along
the Pacific coast. To Yamagata Prefecture, expressways are
being constructed and air routes connecting major cities in Japan
are being developed.

6,318
7,280
6,685
113.9
1271
134.3
145.5

5,437

The key industries in Yamagata Prefecture are agriculture, whose
main crops include rice, cherries and pears, and manufacturing,
with electronics-related businesses as the mainstay. There are
many diligent capable workers in the prefecture, so in both the
agricultural and the manufacturing industries, the high quality of
products has an established reputation.

3,706

The population of Yamagata Prefecture is 1.12 million people but

in recent years, the population has been declining due to the CONTENTS
declining birthrate and the advanced age of the population. We . . . . . The graph contains non-consolidated data. ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ]
are also focusing efforts to establish the next generation of indus- Financial Highlights and Ratios:«--------eoeoees 1 12 13 14 s e 12 13 14 15 16
tries, which will lead towards the sustainable development of local Message from M ANAgEMENt -reerrerrrreeeeeeeas 2
communities. Efforts should be made, for instance, to foster a

high-grade agricultural industry, to promote sightseeing which Review of Operations -=---xoemereemememmenne. 4
makes the best use of the natural topography with weather which

has four distinct seasons and to encourage the application of Corporate D L 5
local cut_ting.-e(?ge research projects at_ highly. sophigticated Financial Statements ««-----r--s-errereerrmiereeaenenns 6
research institutions. Yamagata Bank carries out its business to

support such initiatives.




Message from Management

Management philosophy

To prosper together with the region
To satisfy all of our customers
To provide our staff with stability and opportunities

What Yamagata Bank is aiming for

We are grateful for the continuous patronage of our
customers towards Yamagata Bank from the bottom of
my heart.

Domestic Economy

In the first half of the current period, the domestic
economy also showed signs of a gradual recovery.
However, from the middle of the year recovery came to a
stagnation because of a slowdown in foreign economic
activity.

There was a trend towards declining exports due to the
deceleration of the Chinese economy and low oil prices
in the background resource-rich countries faltering
economies. For this reason, private sector production
remained weak and inventory adjustment continued to
focus on capital goods. Although a trend of increasing
investment in plant and equipment remained, from the
middle of the year there was a slight slowdown in the
pace of growth after an initial increase in corporate
earnings. On the other hand, in the household sector,
although there was a moderate improvement in
employment/ income circumstances, consumer
budgeting continued due to the influence of consump-
tion tax rate increases persisting over a long period and
also a spontaneous worldwide decline in stock values
which resulted in a decline in consumer sentiment.
Personal consumption has largely stopped levelling off.
Housing investment improved from the reactionary fall
after the increase in the rate of consumption tax, main-
taining a steady rise, although growth began to slow
down from the middle of the year. Also, the trend in the
decline in public investment remained after a complete
boom in economic incentive.

The economy in Yamagata prefecture

Concerning the economy of Yamagata Prefecture, also
the principal place of business of Yamagata Bank, in
the first half, there were gradual visible signs of
recovery but after the middle of the year, the weakness
of consumption and investment stood out and the sense
of stagnation strengthened.

Corporate production activities remain weak when
viewed on the whole because of the shift to declining
business in electronic components and devices, the
main industry within the prefecture which shifted to

promising growth last year. As it was seen that invest-
ment in plant and equipment with a focus on the
manufacturing industry usually had no further room for
investment, there remained a trend towards decline,
there was also a decrease in public investment
continuing on from last year. On the other hand, the
increase in housing investment has on the whole risen,
after a complete downward spiral brought about by the
increase in the consumption tax rate. During this time
with regard to employment conditions, the ratio of job
offers to job applicants remained at a high level and the
serious shortage of workers continued, there was
sluggish growth in business income and consumer
sentiment lacked enthusiasm but consumer spending in
general held steady.

The bank celebrated its 120th anniversary on April 14th
this year thanks to the ceaseless support of all our
shareholders and local people. In this milestone year,
once again we would like to thank everyone for the
support they have given to us. Along with being a "bank
bearing responsibility for the development of Yamagata"
proactively leading revitalization of the region, based on
our new brand message, "pointing towards your
dreams", we will be a partner to the realization of
everyone’'s dreams. While receiving faith/confidence
from everyone with regards to the region, we will
expand our business foundations and further enhance
our absolute corporate value.

We would be most grateful if you could continue to
extend your warm-hearted support and lasting
patronage.

Aiming to be the ovenrvhelming&r no. 1 bank by
bearing responsibility for the development of
Yamagata

The management philosophy of Yamagata Bank, which
has been maintained throughout the long history of the
Bank, is based on three aspects, namely the region, our
customers and our employees, and has the common
ideal as that of the corporate social responsibility of the
modern management. Therefore, we have set the
management philosophy as our corporate social respon-
sibility charter, and we consider that meeting our
corporate social responsibility is the management of the
Bank.

Using our Yamagin Innovation Plan Ill, the 18th long-term
management plan, which started in April 2015, we will put
our management philosophy into practice aiming for two

major targets: revitalization of the region (growth of the
region) and increase in earnings (growth of the bank).

CSR charters

The management philosophy of Yamagata Bank, which
the bank has respected throughout its long history, also
applies to CSR management in the current times. Under
the 18th long-term management plan, various business
problems will be solved by regarding the management
philosophy as CSR charters.

To prosper together with the region

From the aspect of the economy and social contribu-
tions (the meaning of our existence)

Regional banks share a common destiny with their
home region. They bear a responsibility to contribute
to the growth of the economy of their region, which is
permanent, regardless of the flow of the times. Today,
the roles of regional banks are expanding, not only in
financial aspects, but also in social aspects.

To satisfy all of our customers

From the aspect of our customers (customer satisfaction)
The lifestyles of our customers are diversifying, which
means that the requirements of each customer differ.
We endeavor to raise our ability each and every day to
solve customers' problems so that they will use our
services for a long time.

To provide our staff with stability and
opportunities

From the aspect of our employees (employee satisfaction)
The satisfaction of our employees — who serve our
customers — is vital to deliver good services to
customers. Yamagata Bank is managed in a way
whereby the employees are proud of working at the bank,
are eager to complete their tasks and feel enthusiastic.

Two major targets to materialize the 18th
long-term management plan

Revitalization of the region (growth of the region)
Increase in earnings (growth of the bank)

We will work for the final finishing of the innova-
tion plan by implementing measures by attaching
importance to six keywords.

1.Speed

2.Actions

3.Image reformation
4.Capability*

5.IT strategy

6.Growth strategy

*Capability:Organizational capacity and the strengths that the
company has as a whole.

Basic policies in three years (fiscal 2015-2017)

1.We will proactively lead the revitalization of the
region by means such as fostering new industries
and generating more employment.

2.We will raise our absolute corporate value by
expanding the business foundations, as a bank
rooted in the region.

3.We will resolve structural problems and change
our business to materialize sustainable growth
based on the “innovation” (everlasting aspiration)
realized in the 16th and 17th long-term plans.

Outline of the major issues

1.Expansion of the size
Strive to increase top-line earnings and to raise
the volume share.

2.Raising productivity
Raise the productivity of each executive and
each of the staff by reforming the work style.

3.Strengthening of the corporate brand and CS
Establish the Yamagata Bank Brand and raise its
corporate value through behavioral reform of the
executive and the staff.

4 Enhancement of human resource capacity
Use diverse human resources, foster and
strengthen practical human resources and
promote a good work-life balance.

5.Generating the value of the region
Bear responsibility for the growth of the region by
making further efforts for the revitalization of the
region.

e

Kichishige Hasegawa
President



Review of Operations
The Conditions of Consolidated Accounts

The General situa-
tion of this term
(from April 1, 2015
to March 31, 2016)

Deposits and negotiable certifi-

cates of deposit

As a result of our efforts to offer
products that respond to the diverse
requirements of our customers, the
year-end consolidated balance of
deposits and negotiable certificates of
deposits rose by ¥55.7 billion during
the year to ¥2,195.2 billion. Although
there was a reduction in public-fund
deposits, there was a favorable
increase in corporate deposits and
deposits by personal customers.

Deposited assets under custody

The year-end consolidated balance of
customers’ assets under custody rose
overall by ¥16.4 billion during the year
to ¥356.2 billion driven primarily by
good sales of life insurance.

Loans

The year-end consolidated balance of
loans rose by ¥114.2 billion during the
year to ¥1,584.5 billion. This was
achieved by the Bank pro-actively
responding to the demand for funds by
local companies and local public
entities, in addition to working to
increase loans to personal customers
mainly focusing on housing loans.

Securities

While there is continued increases in
large loans, year-end consolidated
balance of securities dropped by ¥80.4
billion during the year to ¥741.1 billion

as a result of curbing reinvestment in
government bonds in consideration of
the investment conditions and market
trends both nationally and overseas.

Profit and loss

Consolidated ordinary income, when
compared to the previous vyear,
decreased by ¥717 million to ¥45,252
million: the main reason being a
decrease in other operation income
including profits on the sale of national
bonds and fund investment returns. This
occurred despite an increase in profit on
sales of company stock and in earnings
from service transactions. Consolidated
ordinary expenses increased by ¥1,254
million to ¥ 34,504 million mainly due
to loss on bad debt expense and the
sale of government bonds. As a result,
consolidated ordinary income (net)
fell by ¥1,971 million to ¥10,747
million and consolidated net income
attributable to owners of the parent,
when compared to the previous year,
decreased by ¥769 million to ¥6,714
million.

Results by business sector

In the banking business, the ordinary
income for the consolidated fiscal year
was ¥39,097 million, which was ¥385
million less than that of the previous
fiscal year; the segment profit for the
consolidated fiscal year was ¥9,934
million, which was ¥1,673 million less
than the previous fiscal year. In the
leasing business, the ordinary income
for the consolidated fiscal year was
¥4,890 million, which was an increase
of ¥136 million when compared to the
previous fiscal year; the segment profit
for the consolidated fiscal year was
¥190 million, which was ¥3 million
less than the previous fiscal year. Also,
in other business sectors, the ordinary

income for the consolidated fiscal year
was ¥2,416 million, which was ¥212
million less than that for the previous
year; the segment profit was ¥633
million, which was ¥255 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year.

Cash flow

Cash flow from operating activities
was negative at ¥46.1 billion because
of an increase in loans.

Cash flow from investing activities was
positive at ¥73.1 billion because the
inflow generated by sales and redemp-
tions of securities exceeded the
outflow from acquisition of securities.
Cash flow from financing activities was
negative at ¥0.9 billion because of the
payment of dividends.

As a result of the above, the year-end
consolidated balance of cash and cash
equivalents rose by ¥26 billion during
the year to ¥102.7 billion.

Corporate Data

Management

(As of June 23, 2016)

President

Kichishige Hasegawa

Senior Managing Directors

Shinichiro Miura
Yoshihiro Ishikawa

Managing Directors

Masahiro Takeda
Haruhiko Tanno
Satoshi Nagai

Organization

(As of June 23, 2016)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Directors

Yoshihiro Domon

Kiyohiro Naganuma

Shinya Katsuki

Hiroshi Koya

Kosuke Suzuki

Yumiko Inoue

Tamon Nakagawa (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Masaki Kakizaki (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Shinichi Nakayama (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Bin Hamada (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Yasumasa Gomi (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Gisuke Ohara (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Secretariat

General Planning & Coordinations Division

Audit & Supervisory Committee

Board of Directors Governance Committee

Executive Committee

Senior Managing Directors
Managing Directors

Auditing Division

Human Resources & General Administration Division

Corporate Business Planning Division

Corporate Business Support Division

Financial Markets Division

Credit Division

Operation Administration Division

Tokyo Liaison Office

Head Office Business Division

Branches




The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2016 and 2015

Assets

Cash and due from banks (NOte Q) e
Call loans and bills purchased
Monetary claims bought -+
Trading securities (Note 5) -
Securities (Note 5and 1 1) ........................................................................
Loans and bills discounted (NOte 4) oo
Foreign exchange (Note 4)
Other assets (Note 11) -
Tangible fixed assets -

BUIlAINGS (NOTE 10)  «rorereemermeeeisie e

Land (NOLE B)  ++everrerrrsesmeimt ittt

Constraction in PIOBIESS +++eetteereeereeererseetatanntttniiiiiiiiiiii

Other tangible fixed assets (NOte 10) e
Intangible fixed assets

SOFEWAE +vvveeessrrrmrrreeees ettt e sttt e et e e

Other intangib|e fIXEA ASSELS «werrvrrrrrrrrrrrre
Net defined benefit assets (NOte 17) «rrrvrrrrrrrrrs
Deferred tax assets (NOtE 15) errrrreererrreiiii e
Customer's liabilities for acceptances and guarantees -
Reserve for possible [0an [0SSES +««wtrrwrrerrrrrmmrriiiiiis
TOUAI @SSELS  vvvvreerrrrrrrrrreessmnnnrteeee sttt e e ettt e e e e e s e

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:

DEPOSIS (NOLE 11) rervrereermrerie e
Negotiable certificate of deposits
Call money and bills sold (NOte 11) oo
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 11) e
Borrowed money (Note 11)
FOreign exchange -« wmwemeueneianies
Bonds with stock acquisition rights
Other ||ab|||t|es ..........................................................................................
Reserve for bonuses t0 dir@Ctors «««««wwwrw v
Liabilitiese for retirement benefits (NOte 17) e
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits <« v
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments «--««coooveeeemveeeeieens
Reserve for 10SSes 0N CONTINGENCIES -+« wwwrrrrrrrrrrrmmrmmiiiii
Reserve for loss due to returning interests e
Deferred tax liabilities (NOte 15) «wweereermvvmrrrm
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land (Note 6)
Acceptance and gUAraNtEES +««««-«rwwsrreremmmeesei
TOtAl [FADIIITIES  «++vereeereeeeeereermeeaaeeaaat et

Net Assets

Shareholders' equity (Note 7 & 19):
COMIMION STOCK ++++++##sersersmssmssttitbbbb bbb
CaPital SUIMDIUS <+ +vrrresrresrese et
Retained @arNINGS  ««++w+wervresrersreseie et
TrEASUIY STOCK +r+rvrsressreseestas ettt

Total Shareholders' @qUity ««-«--wwrrrsrermmeeeie
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale (Note 5)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments ===+
Reva|uation Of |and (Note 6) ..................................................................
Retirement benefits liability adjustments <«

Total accumulated other comprehensive iINCoOME =+«
Non-controlling interests -«

Total net assets  «---oevveeeeeeenes

Total liabilities and net assets

2016

(Millions of yen)

2015

(Millions of yen)

2016

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 106,159
15,149
7,602

28
741,165
1,584,509
1,236
21,379
13,884
3,572
8,789

111

1,411
1,633
1,417
216

112

264
17,019
(6,472)

¥ 79,775
34,597
9,758
40
821,614
1,470,267
1,028
20,826
13,922
3,675
8,985
68
1,193
1,036
819
217
1,905
316
18,125
(6,334)

$ 942,134
134,449
67,465
252
6,577,611
14,062,026
10,975
189,740
123,218
31,704
78,004
986
12,523
14,499
12,578
1,921
998
2,344
151,044
(57,442)

¥ 2,503,672

¥ 2,466,878

$ 22,219,319

¥ 2,075,390
119,845
15,211
35,130
48,088
38
11,268
16,700
25

47

275

55

220

71
7,012
1,325
17,019

¥ 2,036,421
103,112
39,980
25214
46,915
57
12,017
18,171
21

42

314

78

214

79
9,996
1,420
18,125

$ 18,418,449
1,063,592
135,000
311,775
426,770
340
100,000
148,212
221

417
2,446
488

1,960

638
62,230
11,766
151,044

¥ 2,347,728

¥ 2312,184

$ 20,835,356

¥ 12,008 ¥ 12,008 $ 106,572
4,934 4,934 43,789
112,612 106,816 999,400
(2,976) (2,972) (26,416)
126,578 120,787 1,123,345
24,111 26,863 213,983
(3,431) (2,845) (30,451)

1,182 1,179 10,490

(562) 1,116 (4,988)

21,300 26,314 189,033

8,066 7,593 71,583

¥ 155,944 ¥ 154,694 $ 1,383,962
2,503,672 2,466,878 22,219,319

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015

Consolidated Statement of Income

Ordinary INCOME@ oo

INTEIEST INCOME v vvrrrmrne ettt
Interest on loans and diSCOUNTS -+ eeerrrrrrmmmeeeriiii s
Interest and dividends on securities -
Interest on call loans and bills bought ----
Interest on deposits with banks — --«---eeeeeee
OFNEE TNTEIEST -+ vvvvrerrmrrmernetiete e

Fees and commissions

Other operating income

Other INCOME ++«vvvrrrrrerrmriariiiieeieieieians
Reversal of allowance for loan losses -

Ordinary Expenses ...........................................................................

Interest Expense .......................................................................................
Interest on deposits ..............................................................................
Interest on negotiable certificate of depoSIits «+++ vrrwvemrrerres
Interest on call money and bills SOId +++xxrvveeeereri
Interest on payables under securities lending transsaction
Interest on borrowings and rediSCouNts <« oeeeeerrmeiieniiin.

OFNEr INTEIEST  -vvrvrrrrrrernetne ettt
Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENTS  ««-xveervresrreirsisi
Other operating EXPBINISE +++vvreeerree ettt e ettt
General and administrative EXPENSES  ««-«wxovrerriesi
Other expenses

Provision on allowance for [0an [0SSES  «+++rterrreereerreiriiiiiiin

Ordinary Income (Net) .....................................................................

Extraordinary 107000 11 = TR T TR T T TP PP
Gain on disposal of NON-CUrrent @ssets  -«wo e
Extraordinary JOSSES  «vrervcerremrtumuiiiiiiiiiiiii s
Loss on disposal of NoN-Current @ssets <+« e
|mpairment loss (Note 12) .....................................................................

Income before inCome taxes e

INCOME TAXES-CUIMENT  +vcveeeremememteet et
Income taxes-deferred (Note 15)  «oooovrervrniin
Total INCOME TAXES :coveerereraertarmtiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it sniaaaas

Net INCOME -+ oo

Net income attributable to noncontrolling iNterests ««----«+«evvvveeinerieiinen.
Net income attributable to owners of the parent «--------oeeeeeveeiniin.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

NeEet INCOME +-vvvvverrmeeinii

Other comprehensive income (Note 13)
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale --------eeeeeeeee
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments
Revaluation of land  «-ccoeeeeememmmn
Retirement benefits liability adjustments ««---------eeeeee

Comprehensive INCOME  ceererererminiiiiiiiiiiin e
Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the parent
Comprehensive Income attributable to non-controlling interests -«+--------

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)
45,252 ¥ 45,970 $ 401,602
26,208 26,444 232,593
18,403 18,852 163,322
7,617 7,316 67,601
51 88 460
11 18 105
124 168 1,102
7,669 7,632 68,068
7,053 8,531 62,593
4,321 3,361 38,347
- 429 0
22 12 198
4,298 2,919 38,149
34,504 33,250 306,220
2,730 2,688 24,235
1,297 1,273 11,515
150 131 1,334
25 15 224
76 26 678
81 69 720
1,099 1,170 9,760
2,091 2,336 18,564
6,094 5,341 54,087
22,281 22,638 197,737
1,306 246 11,596
585 - 5,193
721 246 6,402
10,747 12,719 95,382
- 0 0
- 0 0
124 271 1,104
96 140 856
27 130 247
10,623 12,448 94,278
3,548 3,233 31,492
(117) 1,167 (1,038)
3,431 4,401 30,454
7,191 8,047 63,824
477 564 4,239
6,714 ¥ 7,483 $ 59,584
7,191 ¥ 8,047 $ 63,824
(4,950) 9,279 (43,937)
(2,751) 8,533 (24,419)
(585) (474) (5,199)
65 133 578
(1,678) 1,087 (14,896)
2,240 17,327 19,886
1,762 16,760 15,643
478 567 4,243

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 7



Accumulated other comprehensive income (Millions of yen)

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

h:]etlg.nrealizgd Deferred gain Revaluation  Retrement benefts  Total accumulated - rolling  Total net
Shareholders' equity (Millions of yen) For the year ended March 31, 2016 og sg]gur%ﬁa”s] (Io§s)ton hedtging of land d'”att)i”tyt other comprehensive interests assels
For the year ended March 31, 2016 . ) ) Total shareholders' available for sale ~ "MSUMents adusiments ncome
Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock equity

Balance as April 1, 2015 «cceeeeeereeeiennnees ¥ 26863 ¥ (2,845) ¥ 1,179 ¥ 1,116 ¥ 26,314 ¥ 7,593 ¥ 154,694
Balance as April 1, 2015 «+:eseeeseueeeueueees ¥ 12,008 ¥ 4,934 ¥ 106,816 ¥ (2972) ¥ 120,787 Cumulative effects of changesin -
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies .
ACCOUNEING POIICIES +++++rrrsersesesnesessereseas - Restated balance at April 1, 2015 --------- 26,863 (2,845) 1,179 1,116 26,314 7,593 154,694
Restated balance at April 1, 2015 -+ 12,008 4,934 106,816 (2,972) 120,787 Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year Cash Dividends «-:eseereererenrenneninins (980)

Cash Dividends :-:cceeeeeerseceeraeinnnennns (980) (980) Nfet income attributable to owners 6714

Net income attributab|e 10 owners [0} parent ....................................... s

OF PAENL  «+-svesrseesseessessnnsensesisreneanns 6,714 6,714 Acquisition of treasury stocks (4)

Acquisition of treasury stocks «::--ceeeeee (4) (4) Disposition of treasury stocks —

Disposition of treasury stocks «-----+--- — Reversal of land revaluation ««««««-++«-ee+ 62

Reversal of land revaluation --------+++--- 62 62 ghhaarg g?dgsi;eenai i?;hiztaer nt1hsan

ghhgg glsdgsi;eergi i(t);hi‘taé nt1l'1sam in(th<te consoltid)ated fiscal year ----+++++-+ (2,752) (585) 2 (1,678) (5,014) 473 (4,541)

net amounts

i i fiscal year «-----ceeee+ -

'”(;‘]2? g%réi%ltlg)ated Iscal year TOMAL +oveerererrereerereeseseeseseeseseeseseeseseneas 2.752) (585) 2 (1,678) (5.014) 473 1.250
TOLAl wvvvevvremmmnnrneenreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereemmemnnnns 5796 ) 5,791 Balance as of March 31, 2016 ««-+c-eeeeveee ¥ 24111 ¥  (3,431) ¥ 1,182 ¥ (562) ¥ 21,300 ¥ 8,066 ¥ 155,944
Balance as of March 31, 2016 ¥ 12,008 ¥ 4934 ¥ 112,612 ¥ 2976 ¥ 126,578

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Millions of yen)

Net unrealized Deferred gain . Retirement benefits  Total accumulated )
Shareholders' equity (Millions of yen) holding gain | hedai Revaluation labil h hensi Non-controlling ~ Total net
; For the year ended March 31, 2015 on securities (o§s)on edging of land l|ab||ty ofher comprehensive interests assets

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock Total s;;:ﬁ;olders available for sale nstruments adjustments ncome
Balance as April 1, 2014 wwvwwssssssssereneee ¥ 12,008 ¥ 4939 ¥ 101,464 ¥ (828) ¥ 117,583 Salanee as APl 1 2OT8 o ¥o1sss ¥ 30 ¥ 1078 ¥ 28 ¥ 17063 ¥ 7034 ¥ 141682
Cumulative effects of changes in umu'ailve effects of changes in
accounting po”cies .............................. (189) (189) aCCOuntlng DOIICIeS i (189)
Restated balance at April 1, 2014 «--eeveee 12,008 4,939 101,275 (828) 117,394 Restated palance at Aprll 1, 2014 """"" 18,333 (2,370) 1,073 28 17,063 7,034 141,493
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year Changes in the consolidated fiscal year

Cash DIiVIAENdS ««-srreeeeeeemrereeesmnmees (1,001) (1,001) (’\DIatsh D|V|dentc:s.b-'t---b-l----t -------------------- (1,001)

Net income attributable to owners et Income attributable 10 owners

of parent ....................................... 7’483 7’483 of parent """""""""""""""""""""""" 71483

Acquisition of treasury stocks ---«+------ (3,115) (3,115) Acquisition Of treasury Stocks oo 3,115

Disposition of treasury Stocks ««+++++-- (5) (967) 972 - Disposition of freasury stocks --------- -

Reversal of land revaluation --+--+-++---.- 26 26 gzversal of I_?nd re\;:luatt;on """""""" 26

Changes in items other than anges in Items other than

shareholders. equity items e Comaiicoed fiaalyear -ererre- 8,530 (474) 106 1,087 9,250 558 9,808

in the consolidated fiscal year ««--+-+---- In the consolidated tiscal year ) , , ,

(net amounts) (net amounts)
TOtaAl cevveeerrrneermnnerriieerie e, (5) 5540 (2,143) 3392 Total coreeeeerreneeii 8,530 (474) 106 1,087 9,250 558 13,201
Balance as of March 31’ 2015 ¥ 12,008 ¥ 4’934 ¥ 106,816 ¥ (2’972) ¥ 120,787 Balance as of March 31, 2015 ¥ 26,863 ¥ (2,845) ¥ 1,179 ¥ 1,1 16 ¥ 26,314 ¥ 7,593 ¥ 154,694
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)
Shareholders' equity (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2) ":ftlé{nreaﬁz?d Deferred gain Revaluation  Retirement benefts  Total accumulated  ~ L g Total net
. olding gain : il - -
For the year ended March 31, 2016 Common stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock Total szgl:(iat;owers For the year ended March 31, 2016 avgri}:;gufgg?ale (Io?:gtfgn:]::tgsmg of land adjllljast:::teyms otherci(:zgrr::enmve interests assels
Balance as April 1, 2015 --eeeeeeereeeeeeenes $ 106,572 $ 43,789 § 947,961 $ (26,375) $ 1,071,947 Balance as April 1, 2015 «ceeeeeeeeeeeenne. $ 238407 $ (25251) $ 10,468 $ 9907 $ 233531 $ 67,385 $ 1,372,864
Cumulative effects of changes in Cumulative effects of changes in
accounting policies - +«-rrererrerereecarenceennes accounting POliCiEs -+«+esvereresrerereeenaneenns —
Restated balance at April 1, 2015 --------- 106,572 43,789 947,961 (26,375) 1,071,947 Restated balance at April 1, 2015 -------.- 238,407 (25,251) 10,468 9,907 233,531 67,385 1,372,864
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends :+«--re-seeeerrerrrnernanennns (8,703) (8,703) Cash Dividends ««-e-eeeeerereerneenernennenns (8,703)
Net income attributable to owners Net income attributable to owners
Of parent «++eeerereseererereiiinnniiiii, 59,584 59,584 of parent -eeeeeeereeeerii 59,584
Acquisition of treasury stocks «----------- (40) (40) Acquisition of treasury stocks «--:-ceeee- (40)
Disposition of treasury stocks «-«-«-+--- — Disposition of treasury stocks «+«-+--++--- —
Reversal of land revaluation ««+++«-«+e---- 556 556 Reversal of land revaluation ««--+-««++ee-- 556
Changes in items other than Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year -----«---+: - in the consolidated fiscal year --++++++++ (24,423) (5,199) 21 (14,896) (44,498) 4,197 (40,300)
(net amounts) (net amounts)
TOUAL vvvrrrrreeeeeereeereerrrerreerrrerrr. 51,438 (40) 51,398 TOtAl cevvereerrnreermimeermnieiiineeiieerienans (24,423) (5,199) 21 (14,896) (44,498) 4,197 11,098
Balance as of March 31, 2016 $ 106,572 $ 43,789 § 999,400 $ (26,416) $ 1,123,345 Balance as of March 31, 2016 «--cc-eeeeeeeee $ 213983 $ (30451) $ 10,490 $ (4,988) $ 189,033 $ 71,583 $ 1,383,962

8 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 9



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:

Income before income taxes
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Loss on impairment of fixed assets
Reserve for possible loan losses
Reserve for directors' bonus
Assets for retirement benefits
Liabilities for retirement benefits
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits
Reserve for loss due to returning interests
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for losses on contingencies
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss (gain) on investment securities
Foreign exchange gain, net
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificate of deposits
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings)
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding due from Bank of Japan)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans and bills purchased
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions
Net decrease (increase) in trading securities
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchange-assets
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange-liabilities
Proceeds from fund management
Payments for finance
Other
Subtotal
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Proceeds from redemption of investment securities
Expenditure for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
Income from sale of tangible fixed assets
Expenditure for acquisition of intangible fixed assets
Income from sale of intangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds with stock acquisition rights
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Purchases of treasury stock
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (No.9)

1 0 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2016

(Millions of yen)

2015

(Millions of yen)

2016

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 10,623 ¥ 12,448 $ 94,278
1,253 1,181 11,128
27 130 247
138 (1,711) 1,225
3 1 31
(657) (1,242) (5,836)
4 2 35
(39) 9 (347)
(7) (138) (69)
(23) (80) (204)
6 (11) 58
(26,208) (26,444) (232,593)
2,730 2,688 24,235
(3,621) (4,288) (32,142)
74 (73) 662
96 140 856
(114,309) (60,886) (1,014,457)
39,043 16,868 346,502
16,733 3,389 148,502
1,199 (2,539) 10,647
(306) (2,090) (2,719)
21,499 (15,251) 190,800
(24,641) 39,895 (218,686)
10,031 3,898 89,026
11 17 103
(279) 555 (2,481)
(19) 2 (174)
26,282 26,629 233,247
2,711) (2,868) (24,061)
815 (4,021) 7,233
(42,249) (13,789) (374,951)
(3,858) (3,554) (34,239)
6 7 54
(46,101) (17,336) (409,135)
(207,039) (295,083) (1,837,407)
244,592 284,951 2,170,681
37,526 63,160 333,035
(1,145) (1,466) (10,163)
141 6 1,253
(914) (222) (8,119)
8 8 74
73,169 51,353 649,354
- 10,292 -
(980) (1,001) (8,703)
(5) (9) (45)
(4) (3,115) (40)
(990) 6,165 (8,788)
0 (0) 3
26,078 40,182 231,434
¥ 76,698 ¥ 36,515 $ 680,674
102,776 76,698 912,108

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2016

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata
Bank, Ltd. (the "Bank") have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of
Japan and its related accounting regulations and the Enforcement
Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the "Banking Law") , and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
("Japanese GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards.

In preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications have been made in the consolidated financial
statements issued for domestic purposes in order to present them in a
form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, the
notes to the consolidated financial statements include information
which is not required under accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

As permitted by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act amounts
of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (both in
yen and U.S.dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sums of the
individual amounts.

2. U.S.Dollar Amounts

The Bank maintains its records and prepares its financial statements in
yen. Amounts in U.S.dollars are presented solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan. The rate of 112.68=U.S.$1.00, the rate of
exchange in effect on March 31, 2016, has been used in translation.
The translation should not be construed as a representation that yen
could be converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

3. Summary of Significant Acco-
unting Policies

a. Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Bank and its 7 subsidiaries, except for 2 subsidiaries
which are not consolidated due to its immateriality.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisition
and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Immaterial goodwill is charged to income when
incurred.

b. Securities

Securities are classified into three categories: trading, held-to-maturity
bonds, or other securities (securities available for sale). Trading
account securities, which are purchased for trading purpose, are
carried at market value and held-to-maturity bonds are carried at
amortized cost. Marketable securities classified as securities available
for sale are carried at market value with changes in unrealized holding
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly in
net assets. Available-for-sale securities which do not have readily
determinable fair value are carried at cost. Cost of securities sold is
determined by the moving average method.

c. Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are stated at fair market value.

d. Tangible fixed assets

The Bank recognizes depreciation by the straight-line method applicable
to each specific category of assets. The useful lives of buildings and
equipment are summarized as follows:

Buildings : 2 to 50 years  Equipment : 2 to 15 years

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets of the consolidated subsidiaries
is mainly computed using the declining-balance method over the
estimated useful lives of respective assets.

e. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are depreciated by the straight-line method. The
Bank's software, which is used in-house, is depreciated based on the
estimated period of use (mainly five years) at the Bank and at consoli-
dated subsidiaries.

f. Leased assets

Leased assets on finance lease transactions that do not transfer
ownership are depreciated over the useful life of assets, equal to the
lease term, by the straight-line method with zero residual value or,
where lease agreements stipulate guarantee of residual value, the
guaranteed residual value. The Bank leases certain vehicle, computer
equipment and other assets.

g. Foreign currency translation

Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into
yen equivalents at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date.

h. Reserve for possible loan loss

The reserve for possible loan losses of the Bank is provided in
accordance with internally established standards for write-offs and
reserve provisions. The reserve for possible loan losses on loans to
borrowers who are classified as substantially bankrupt or who are
legally bankrupt is provided based on the amount remaining after
deduction of the amounts expected to be recoverable from the
disposal of collateral and amounts recoverable under guarentees. In
addition, an allowance is provided for loans to borrowers who,
although not legally bankrupt, are experiencing serious difficulties and
whose failure is imminent. In such cases, a portion of this allowance is
provided based on the amount remaining after deduction of the
amounts expected to be recoverable from the disposal of collateral
and the amounts recoverable under guarantees, and the balance of the
allowance is provided after giving full consideration to the amount
which the borrower is deemed capable of repaying. In the case of all
other loans, the amount provided as an allowance is based on the
Bank's historical percentage of actual defaults over a specific fixed
period in the past.

The relevant departments assess the assets for all of the credit, based
on self-assessment standards for assets, and an independent asset
audit department audits the results of the assessments. We provide a
reserve described above based on the assessment results.

The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the quality
of the Bank's total loan assets, applying the Bank's internally
established rules for the self-assessment of its assets.

i. Reserve for bonuses to directors and corporate auditors

A reserve for bonuses to directors and corporate auditors is provided in
the amount accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the
estimated amount of future bonus payment to directors and corporate
auditors.

j. Employees’ retirement benefits

For the calculation of employees’ retirement benefit obligation, the
estimated amount of employees' retirement benefits is attributed to
each period by the straight-line method.

Prior service cost is amortized as incurred, by the straight-line method
over a period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years
of service of the active participants in the plans.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized in the year following the year in
which the gain or loss is recognized, by the straight-line method over a
period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years of
service of the active participants in the plans.

Also, certain consolidated subsidiaries calculate the net defined
benefit liability and retirement benefit cost using the simplified method
which assumes the retirement benefit obligation to be equal to the
necessary payments of the voluntary retirement for all employees at
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the fiscal year-end.

k. Reserve for directors and corporate auditors' retirement benefits

A reserve for directors and corporate auditors retirement benefits is
provided in the amount accrued during the year, which is calculated
based on the estimated amount of future retirement payments to
directors and corporate auditors.

I. Reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments

A reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments which are derecog-
nized as liabilities is provided for the possible losses on the future
claims of repayments based on the historical repayments experience.

m. Reserve for losses on contingencies

A reserve for losses on contingencies is provided for future estimated
payments to the Credit Guarantee Corporations.

n. Leases

As lessor

Finance lease revenue and related cost of revenue are recorded when
the lease payment is received.

Investments in leased assets for finance lease transactions which do
not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee and were
entered into before April 1, 2008 was stated at the carrying value of
the relevant fixed assets at March 31, 2008 , pursuant to the
paragraph 81 of Implementation Guidance No.16, "lmplementation
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Lease. If these lease transac-
tions had been retroactively accounted for as ordinary sale
transactions pursuant to paragraph 80 of the Guidance, income before
income taxes and minority interests would have increased by ¥3
million ($26 thousand) and ¥14 million for the year ended March 31,
2016 and 2015.

0. Hedge accounting

1.Interest rate risk hedges
The Bank uses deferral hedges described in "Accounting and
auditing for the application of financial instrument accounting
standards in banking" (Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accoun-
tants, Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 13, 2002,
referred to as Report No. 24 of the Industry Audit Committee) to
hedge interest rate risks generated by the Bank's financial assets
and liabilities. The effectiveness of hedges to offset market fluctua-
tions is assessed for each hedged item (for example, deposits and
loans) and its hedging instrument (such as interest rate swaps).
Concerning hedges to fix the cash flow, the Bank identifies hedged
items by grouping them based on interest rate indexes and on
interest rate revision periods in accordance with Report No. 24 of
the Industry Audit Committee, and specifies interest rate swaps as
hedging instruments. The Bank specifies hedges in such a way that
the major conditions of hedged items and hedging instruments are
almost the same, so we believe that our hedges are highly effective.
The Bank applies the exeptional method for interest rate swaps to
certain assets and liabilities.

2.Exchange rate fluctuation risk hedges
The hedge we use against exchange rate fluctuation risks, which are
generated by our financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies,
is the deferral hedge described in "Accounting and auditing for
transactions in foreign currencies, etc., in banking" (Japanese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Industry Audit Committee
Report No. 25 July 29, 2002, referred to as Report No. 25 of the
Industry Audit Committee). We assess the effectiveness of the hedge
by regarding currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, which are
conducted to reduce or eliminate exchange rate fluctuation risks
generated by monetary claims and liabilities in foreign currencies,
etc., as hedging instruments and by checking whether or not we
have appropriate foreign currency positions for the hedging
instruments to meet the hedged items (monetary claims and
liabilities in foreign currencies, etc.).

p. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and due from the Bank of Japan.

g- Consumption tax and regional consumption tax

With respect to the Bank and the domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
all amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are
recorded exclusive of consumption tax and regional consumption tax.

r. Accounting Policy Changes

1.Application of “Revised Accounting Standard for Business Combina-
tions”
The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted “Revised
Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” (ASBJ Statement
No.21, September 13, 2013), “Revised Accounting Standard for
consolidated Financial Statements”™ (ASBJ Statement No.22,
September 13, 2013), “Revised Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No.7, September 13, 2013) effective
from the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year.
As a result, under these revised accounting standards, the Bank has
changed the accounting method to record the difference arising from
changes in the ownership interest of the Bank in subsidiaries over
which the Bank retains control as capital surplus, and the
corresponding accounting for acquisition-related costs were revised
as costs of the fiscal year in which the business combination occurs.
Regarding business combinations implemented on or after the
beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Bank has
changed the accounting method to retroactively reflect the revised
allocation amount of the acquisition cost determined under
provisional accounting treatment in the consolidated financial
statements for the fiscal year in which the business combination
occurs. In addition, the presentation method of net income attribut-
able to owners of parent was amended, the reference to “minority
interests” was changed to “non-controlling interests”, and accounting
treatment for adjustments to provisional amounts during measure-
ment period was also changed.
In the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2016, cash flow regarding acquisition or sale of
the stocks of the subsidiaries unaccompanied by changes in the
scope of consolidation has been classified into Cash Flow from
Financing Activities. Cash flow regarding costs arising from acquisi-
tion of the stocks of the subsidiaries accompanied by changes in the
scope of consolidation or costs arising from acquisition or sale of the
stocks of the subsidiaries unaccompanied by changes in the scope
of consolidation has been classified into Cash Flow from Operating
Activities.
The Bank has applied the Accounting Standard for Business Combi-
nations and other accounting standards in accordance with the
traditional treatment set forth in Paragraph 58-2(4) of the Accounting
Standard for Business Combinations, Paragraph 44-5(4) of the
Accounting Standard for consolidated Financial Statements, and
Paragraph 57-4(4) of the Accounting Standard for Business Divesti-
tures prospectively from the beginning of the fiscal year ended March
31, 2016.
These changes in accounting policies have no effect on the consoli-
dated financial statements.

2.Changes in accounting policies that are difficult to distinguish from
changes in accounting estimates.
The Bank has changed its depreciation method for tangible fixed
assets, except for lease assets, from the declining-balance method to
the straight-line method, effective from the fiscal year ended March
31, 2016.
Under the long-term Management plan, “YAMAGIN innovation plan
II” starting from this fiscal year, the Bank plans to replace ATMs and
renovate branch offices actively. With such projects, the Bank
determined that its branches, office machineries and equipments, and
other tangible fixed assets would be used constantly over a long
period of time. Consequently, contemplating the fixed nature of the
value in use throughout the useful life of the assets, the Bank
decided to change its depreciation method of tangible fixed assets to
the straight-line method to more accurately reflect business
conditions.
As a result of this change, income before taxes for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2016 decreased by ¥99 million.

s. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Implementation Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets
On March 28, 2016, the ASBJ issued “Revised Implementation

Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets” (ASBJ Guidance
No. 26).
(1)Overview
Regarding the treatment of the recoverability of deferred tax
assets, a review was conducted following the framework of Japa-
nese Institution of Certified Public Accountants Audit Committee
Report No. 66 “Audit Treatment on Determining the Recover-
ability of Deferred Tax Assets,” whereby companies are
categorized into five categories and deffered tax assets are calcu-
lated based on each of these categories.
(2)Scheduled date of adoption
The Bank expects to adopt the revised implementation guidance
from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2017.
(3)Impact of adopting revised implementation guidance
The Bank is currently evaluating the effect of adopting these
revised implementation guidance on its consolidated financial
statements.

4. Loans and Bills Discounted

Loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures and delinquent loans
totaled ¥1,051 million ($9,327 thousand) and ¥14,877 million
($132,028 thousand), respectively, at March 31, 2016, and ¥1,052
million and ¥17,109 million, respectively, at March 31, 2015. A loan is
placed on non-accrual status when substantial doubt as to the collect-
ibility of its principal and interest is judged to exist, if payment is past
due for a certain period of time, or for other reasons.

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent non-accrual loans, after the
charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible, to borrowers who are legally
bankrupt as defined in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 3 and 4
of Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation Income Tax Law.
Delinquent loans are non-accrual loans other than loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy or loans on which interest payments have been deferred in
order to assist the restructuring of the borrowers.

Loans past due for 3 months or more totaled ¥28 million ($248
thousand) and ¥53 million at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Loans past due for 3 months or more are those whose principal or
interest payments are 3 months or more past due but are not included
in loans to borrower under bankruptcy procedures or delinquent loans.
Restructured loans totaled ¥2,857 million ($25,354 thousand) and
¥3,111 million at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Restruc-
tured loans are those on which the Bank has granted certain conces-
sions, such as a reduction of the contractual interest rate or principal
amount or a deferral of interest/principal payments, in order to assist the

5. Securities

restructuring of the borrowers. Excluded from restructured loans are
loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other non-accrual
loans, and loans past due for 3 months or more.

The total of loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, loans past due for 3 months or more and restructured
loans amounted to ¥18,814 million ($166,968 thousand) and ¥21,327
million at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in
accordance with "Treatment of Accounting and Auditing in Applying
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry”
issued by the JICPA Industry Audit Commitee Report No.24 issued on
February 13, 2002. The Bank has rights to sell or pledge accepted
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills discounted, documentary
bills and foreign exchange bought without restrictions. The face value of
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills, documentary bills acquired
at discount and foreign exchange bought at a discount was ¥8,079
million ($71,698 thousand) and ¥7,805 million as of March 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively.

Overdraft protection on current accounts and contracts for loan commit-
ments are agreements under which the Bank and the consolidated
subsidiaries are bound to extend loans up to a prearranged amount, at
the request of the customer, unless the customer is in breach of
contract. The unutilized balance of such contracts amounted to
¥545,153 million ($4,838,063 thousand) and ¥538,229 million as of
March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, in which the balance of
contracts that have a term of one year or less or are unconditionally
cancelable at any time were ¥532,470 million ($4,725,505 thousand)
and ¥528,170 million as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Since many of these contracts are scheduled to expire without the
rights having been exercised, any unutilized balance in itself does not
necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Bank or its consolidated
subsidiaries. A provision is included in many of these contracts which
entitles the Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries to refuse the execu-
tion of such loans, or to reduce the maximum amount loaned under such
contracts when there is a change in the borrowers' financial situation, or
when there is the necessity to secure a claim, or when other similar
factors arise. In addition, the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries
obtain, if needed, real estate or securities as collateral at the time the
contracts are entered into and they subsequently monitor the borrowers'
financial condition periodically based on, and in accordance with, the
procedures established. If deemed necessary, specific measures such
as amendments to the contracts are undertaken in order to control the
credit risk.

Trading securities, marketeble securities classified as held-to-maturity debt securities and other securities at March 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as

follows:

1.Trading securities

(as of March 31, 2016) Unrealized holding gain

charged to current

Unrealized holding gain
charged to current
operations operations

Trading securities

(as of March 31, 2015) Unrealized holding gain

charged to current
operations

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

(Millions of yen)

¥ 0 $ ¥ 0
2. Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2016) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Type Carrying value Fair value Difference Carrying Value Fair value Difference

Fair value exceeding Japanese government bonds | ¥ — — |¥ - |$ — $ - |$ —
carrying value Municipal bonds — — — — — —
Short-term bonds - - - - — -

Corporate bonds 7,815 8,017 202 69,355 71,148 1,792

Other — — — — — —

Subtotal 7,815 8,017 202 69,355 71,148 1,792

Fair value not Japanese government bonds — — — — — —
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — — — — —
value Short-term bonds - - - - — —
Corporate bonds 652 608 (43) 5,786 5,395 (381)

Other — — — — — —
Subtotal 652 608 (43) 5,786 5,395 (381)

Total ¥ 8,467 ¥ 8,626 |¥ 158 | $ 75,141 $ 76,553 [$ 1,402

13



14

Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2015)

(Millions of yen)

Type Carrying value Fair value Difference
Fair value exceeding Japanese government bonds | ¥ — ¥ — |¥ —
carrying value Municipal bonds — — —
Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 7,593 7,722 129
Other — — —
Subtotal 7,593 7,722 129
Fair value not Japanese government bonds — — —
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — —
value Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 1,125 1,067 (58)
Other — — —
Subtotal 1,125 1,067 (58)
Total ¥ 8,719 ¥ 8,790 |¥ 71
3. Other securities (as of March 31, 2016) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Type Carrying value Cost Difference Carrying value Cost Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 26,843 ¥ 11,773 |¥ 15,069 |$ 238,223 $ 104,481 |$ 133,732
exceeding cost Bonds 519,991 503,056 16,934 4,614,758 4,464,465 150,283
Japanese government bonds 317,749 307,247 10,502 2,819,923 2,726,721 93,201
Municipal bonds 100,155 95,418 4,737 888,844 846,805 42,039
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 102,085 100,390 1,695 905,972 890,930 15,042
Other 109,813 105,363 4,450 974,556 935,063 39,492
Foreign bonds 79,575 76,964 2,610 706,203 683,031 23,162
Other 30,238 28,398 1,840 268,352 252,023 16,329
Subtotal 656,648 620,193 36,455 5,827,547 5,504,020 323,526
Carrying value not Stocks 6,185 6,789 (604) 54,889 60,250 (5,360)
exceeding cost Bonds 13,331 13,344 (12) 118,308 118,423 (106)
Japanese government bonds 13,032 13,044 (11) 115,654 115,761 (97)
Municipal bonds — — — — — —
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 299 300 (0) 2,653 2,662 (0)
Other 52,543 53,708 (1,165) 466,302 476,641 (10,339)
Foreign bonds 27,205 27,445 (240) 241,435 243,565 (2,129)
Other 25,337 26,262 (925) 224,858 233,067 (8,209)
Subtotal 72,060 73,842 (1,782) 639,510 655,324 (15,814)
Total ¥ 728,709 ¥694,036 | ¥ 34673 |$ 6,467,066 $6,159,353 |$ 307,712
Other securities (as of March 31, 2015) (Millions of yen)
Type Carrying value Cost Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 39,069 ¥ 17,396 | ¥ 21,673
exceeding cost Bonds 539,750 527,733 12,016
Japanese government bonds 302,022 296,315 5,706
Municipal bonds 132,364 127,703 4,661
Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 105,362 103,714 1,648
Other 137,949 131,758 6,191
Foreign bonds 104,098 101,226 2,872
Other 33,850 30,532 3,318
Subtotal 716,769 676,888 39,880
Carrying value not Stocks 828 1,015 (186)
exceeding cost Bonds 61,084 61,173 (88)
Japanese government bonds 44,272 44,334 (62)
Municipal bonds 3,787 3,790 (3)
Short-term bonds — — -
Corporate bonds 13,025 13,048 (22)
Other 32,995 33,270 (275)
Foreign bonds 15,892 16,027 (135)
Other 17,103 17,243 (140)
Subtotal 94,909 95,459 (549)
Total ¥ 811,678 ¥772,347 | ¥ 39,330

4. Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2016

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales
Corporate bonds ¥ 199 ¥ 200 ¥ 1 $ 1,766 $ 1,774 $ 8
Total ¥ 199 ¥ 200 ¥ 1 $ 1,766 $ 1,774 $ 8

The sales are due to redemption of securities.

Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2015

(Millions of yen)

Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales
Corporate bonds ¥ 255 ¥ 256 ¥ 1
Total ¥ 255 ¥ 256 ¥ 1

The sales are due to redemption of securities.

5. Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales Proceeds from sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 7,684 ¥ 3,205 ¥ 349 $ 68,193 $ 28,443 $ 3,097
Bonds 175,353 1,704 732 1,556,203 15,122 6,496
Japanese government bonds 122,586 1,562 681 1,087,912 13,862 6,043
Municipal bonds 38,817 135 — 344,488 1,198 —
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 13,949 6 51 123,793 53 452
Other 61,374 724 928 544,675 6,425 8,235
Total ¥ 244,412 ¥ 5,634 ¥ 2,010 $ 2,169,080 $ 50 $ 17,838

Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2015

(Millions of yen)

Proceeds from Sales

Gains on sales

Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 4253 ¥ 2124 ¥ 50
Bonds 243,677 2,205 251
Japanese government bonds 222,124 2,018 243
Municipal bonds 15,928 174 -
Short-term bonds - - -
Corporate bonds 5,624 12 8
Other 32,5632 259 —
Total ¥ 280,463 ¥ 4,589 ¥ 301

6. Securities which have readily determinable fair value are devaluated to fair value, and the difference between cost and fair value is treated as loss for the fiscal year if fair value has
significantly deteriorated compared with cost and fair value is unlikely to recover up to the acquisition cost.
The amount of the Impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2015 was zero.
The amount of the Impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 was zero.
The criteria for determining whether a security's fair value has "significantly deteriorated" are: where a security whose fair value is 50% or less and where a security whose fair value
exceeds 50% but is 70% or less of the acquisition cost, considering the quoted market price transition during a certain period in the past, business performance and other factors.

6. Revaluation of Land

Pursuant to the "Law Concerning the Revaluation of Land" (the "Law"), land
used for the Bank's business operations was revalued on March 31, 2002.

7. Stocks Issued

The excess of the revalued aggregate market value over the total book value
(carrying amount) before revaluation was included in net assets at an
amount net of the related tax effect at March 31, 2002. The corresponding
income taxes were included in liabilities at March 31, 2002 as deferred

taxes liability on revalued land.

The revaluation of the land was determined based on two method, the official
prices published by the Commissioner of the National Tax Authority in

accordance with Article 2, Paragraph 4 of the "Enforcement Ordinance
Concerning Land Revaluation," with certain neccssary adjustments, and the

appraisal by Real estate appraiser.

The difference between the total fair value of land for business operation
purposes, which was revalued in accordance with Article 10 of the above-

Beginning of the year

Thousands of stocks

The number of stocks issued and changes during the year ended March 31,
2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

Thousands of stocks

2016

2015

Increase during the year

mentioned law, and the total book value of the land after the revaluation

was ¥3,963 million ($35,170 thousand) and ¥3,981 million at March 31,

2016 and 2015.

End of the year

Decrease during the year

Treasury stock ~ Commonstockissued ~ Treasury stock  Common stock issted
6,554 170,000 1,536 172,000
91 - 7,017 -

- - 2,000 2,000

6,563 170,000 6,554 170,000

*1 The number of treasury stocks, which are common stocks, was increased by 9 thousand of such

stocks that were purchased because they were in fractional numbers of less than one unit.
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8. Dividends

Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as
follows:

2016

November 13, 2015 June 24, 2015

Resolution by the
board of directors

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 490 million ¥ 490 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.0 ¥ 3.0
Base date September 30, 2015 March 31, 2015

Effective date December 10, 2015 June 25, 2015

2016

November 13, 2015

Resolution by the
board of directors

June 24, 2015

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends $ 4,348 thousand $ 4,348 thousand
Dividend per stock $ 0.02 $ 0.02
Base date September 30, 2015 March 31, 2015
Effective date December 10, 2015 June 25, 2015

2015

November 14, 2014

Resolution by the
board of directors

June 24, 2014

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 490 million ¥ 511 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.0 ¥ 3.0
Base date September 30, 2014 March 31, 2014

Effective date

December 10, 2014 June 25, 2014

Dividend of which base date belonged to the year ended March 31, 2016
and 2015 is summarized as follows:

2016
June 23, 2016

Resolution by the general shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 653 million $ 5,795 thousand
Dividend per stock ¥ 4.0 $ 0.03
Base date March 31, 2016 March 31, 2016

Effective date June 24, 2016 June 24, 2016

2015
June 24, 2015
Resolution by the general shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 490 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.0
Base date March 31, 2015

Effective date June 25, 2015

9. Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents stated in the consolidated statement of cash

flows consisted of the following:
2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Cash and due from banks ¥106,159 ¥ 79,775 $ 942,128
Deposits with banks other than
the Bank of Japan (3,383) (8,077) (30,023)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 102,776 ¥ 76,698 $ 912,105

10. Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation totaled ¥25,973 million ($230,502 thousand)
and ¥26,038 million at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

11. Assets Pledged

Pledged assets and liabilities related to pledged assets as of March 31,
2016 and 2015 were summarized as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Pledged assets:
Securities ¥ 180,991 ¥ 194468 $ 1,606,238

Liabilities related to the above pledged assets:

Deposits ¥ 16,534 ¥ 15968 $ 146,734
Call money ¥ - ¥ 20,000 $ -
Payables under securities lending transactions ¥ 35,130 ¥ 25214 § 311,767
Borrowed money ¥ 45155 ¥ 43,521 $ 400,736

In addition, securities totaling ¥32,568 million ($289,030 thousand) and
¥31,925 million were pledged as collateral for settlement of exchange and
futures transactions at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Initial margins of futures markets included in other assets as of March 31,
2016 and 2015 were ¥ — million ($ — thousand) and ¥ 30 million, respec-
tively.

Deposits included in other assets as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 were
¥314 million ($2,786 thousand) and ¥319 million, respectively.

12.Loss on Impairment

The Bank reviewed its long-lived assets by grouping into the units
consisting of operating branches, idle assets, jointly used assets including
head office, administrative centers, company housing and dormitories and
each consolidated subsidiary for impairment and recognized loss on
impairment of land in the amount of ¥27 million ($239 thousand) and
¥ 130 million for the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The recoverable amount used for measurement of loss on impairment was
net selling price and computed mainly based on the real estate appraisal
value.

13. Other Comprehensive Income

Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to other compre-
hensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are

summarized as follows:
2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale:
Amount arising during the year ¥  (1,042) ¥ 15519 $ (9,247)

Reclassification adjustments (3,615) (4,268) (32,082)
Amount before tax effect (4,657) 11,250 (41,329)
Tax effect 1,906 (2,717) 16,915
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for Sale: (2,751) 8,533 (24,414)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments:
Amount arising during the year (1,817) (1,521) (16,125)
Reclassification adjustments 1,064 984 9,442
Amount before tax effect (752) (536) (6,673)
Tax effect 166 62 1,473
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments (585) (474) (5,191)

Revaluation of land:
Amount arising during the year - - -
Reclassification adjustments — — —
Amount before tax effect - - -

Tax effect 65 133 576
Revaluation of land 65 133 576
Retirement benefits liability adjustments:
Amount arising during the year (2,249) 1,651 (19,959)
Reclassification adjustments (201) (53) (1,783)
Amount before tax effect (2,450) 1,697 (21,742)
Tax effect 771 (509) 6,842
Retirement benefits liability adjustments (1,678) 1,087 (14,891)

Total other comprehensive income ¥  (4,950) ¥ 9279 $ (43,929)

14. Leases

Investments in leased assets at March 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Gross lease receivables ¥ 10,951 ¥ 10,884 $ 97,186
Estimated residual values 593 517 5,262
Unearned interest income (1,465) (1,588) (13,001)

Investments in leased assets ¥ 10,080 ¥ 9,813 $ 89,456

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2016 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

2017 ¥ 3,445 $ 30,573
2018 2,836 25,168
2019 2,114 18,761
2020 1,451 12,877
2021 707 6,274
2022 and thereafter 396 3,514

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2015 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen)

2016 ¥ 3,522
2017 2,656
2018 2,059
2019 1,364
2020 741
2021 and thereafter 541

15. Income Taxes

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31,
2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for possible loan losses ¥ 839 ¥ 738 $ 7,445

Devaluation on securities 242 250 2,147
Depreciation 781 777 6,931
Tax loss carryforwards 455 462 4,037
Deffered gain (loss) on hedging instruments 1,505 1,339 13,356
Other 1,519 1,685 13,480
Subtotal:deferred tax assets 5,345 5,253 47,435
Valuation allowance (1,518) (1,877) (13,471)
Total:deferred tax assets 3,826 3,376 33,954
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unvealized holding gains on securties availabl for sale (10,550) (12,457) (93,627)
Net defined benefits assets (18) (594) (159)
Other (5) (5) (44)
Total:deferred tax liabilities (10,574) (13,056) (93,840)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (6,748) ¥ (9,680) $ (59,886)

Note: Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2016 and 2015
were included in the following accounts in the consolidated balance sheets.

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets ¥ 264 ¥ 316 $ 2,342
Deferred tax liabilities (7,012) (9,996) (62,229)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the reconciliation of
the statutory tax rate of the Bank to the effective income tax rate is not
stated as the difference between them is less than 5% of the statutory tax
rate.

The "Act for Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act, etc." (Act No.15 of
2016) and the "Act for Partial Amendment of Local Tax Act, etc." (Act No.13

2016) were enacted in the national diet on March 29, 2016, the effective
statutory tax rate of 32.5% used to measure the Bank's deferred tax assets
and the rate of 32.0% used for the Bank's deferred tax liabilities were
changed to 30.5% for the temporary differences expected to be realized or
settled from the fiscal year beginning on April 1, 2016.

The effect of the announced reduction of the effective statutory tax rate was
to decrease deferred tax assets by 7 million ($62 thousand), decrease
deferred tax liabilities by ¥333 millions ($2,955 thousand), increase
unrealized holding gain (loss) on securities by ¥518 million ($4,597
thousand) and decrease unrealized loss from hedging instruments by ¥74
million ($656 thousand), increase retirement benefits liability adjustments by
¥ 12 million ($106 thousand) and increase deferred income tax expense by
¥ 106 million ($940 thousand) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2016.
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land decreased ¥ 65
million ($576 thousand) and revaluation of land increased by the same
amount.

16. Fair Value Information on Derivatives

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting was not applied are set
force in the table below. These items do not reflect the market risks of the
derivative transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions (Millions of yen)

Contract Contract Fair  Unrealized
amounts  beyond value gain or

<March 31,2016> 1 year (loss)
Over-the-counter:
Swap:
Receive-fixed/pay-floating ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Receive-floating/pay-fixed - - - -
<March 31,2015>
Over-the-counter:
Swap:
Receive-fixed/pay-floating ¥ 4290 ¥ 4290 ¥ 1 ¥ 34
Receive-floating/pay-fixed 4,290 4,290 (16) (16)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Contract Contract Fair  Unrealized
<March 31.2016> amounts l%egllggg value g(?cl)gsc;r
Over-the-counter:
Swap:

Receive-fixed/pay-floating $
Receive-floating/pay-fixed - - - -

1. The above transactions are measured at fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are included in the consolidated statement of income.
2. Fair values are obtained using the discounted cash flow, etc.

Currency-related transactions (Millions of yen)

Contragt %ontragt F'Tair Unrealized
<March 31.2016> amounts 1e¥ggr value g(%gso)r

Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold ¥ 18,287 ¥ — ¥ 865 ¥ 865
Bought 349 - (4) (4)

<March 31,2015>
Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold ¥ 13,463 ¥ — ¥ (167) ¥ (167)
Bought 99 - 0 0

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Contrag;t %ontragt Felair Unrealized
amounts  beyon value ain or
<March 31,2016> 1 year g(Ioss)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Forward exchange contracts
Sold $162291 $ - $7676 $7676
Bought 3,097 - (35) (35)

1. The above transactions are measured at fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are included in the consolidated statement of income.
2. Fair values are obtained using the discounted cash flow, etc.
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(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied
Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are set force in the table below. These items below do not represent the market risks of the
derivative transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 2, 2002. "Treatment for

Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking industry."
2. The fair value of over-the-counter transactions is calculated based on the discounted present value and option pricing models.
3. Since derivative transactions qualifying for the exceptional method are treated as a unit of loans, those fair values are included in fair values of such loans.

Currency-related transactions (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting Contract amounts Contract amounts
method Type Major hedged item | Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
receive-floating/ ¥ 62,328 ¥ 55128 ¥(4934) [$ 553141 |$ 489243  |$(43787)
pay-fixed
Exceptional Interest rate swaps Loans
method receive-floating/ 10,000 10,000 88,746 88,746
pay-fixed
Other
Bought
Total - — — ¥ (4,934) — — $ (43,787)
Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2015) (Millions of yen)
Hedge accounting Contract amounts
method Type Major hedged item | ~ Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
receive-floating/ ¥ 71007  |¥ 70097 ¥(4,219)
pay-fixed
Exceptional Interest rate swaps Loans
method recewe—ﬂoatmg/ 10,000 10,000
pay-fixed
Other Loans
Bought 5,000
Total — — - ¥(4,219)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge accounting

Contract amounts

Contract amounts

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Call loans in foreign
Currency swaps | cUrency/
Call money in foreign ¥ 32,602 ¥ 3,831 ¥ (0) |$ 289,332 $ 33,998 $ (0)
currencies
Total - - — ¥ (0) — — $ (0)

Currency-related transactions (as of March 3

1,2015)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting

Contract amounts

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Currency swaps Call Ioan/s in foreign
currency,
. . ¥
Call money in foreign ¥ 55299 ¥ 1682 (266)
currencies
Total — — — ¥ (266)

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 25

Accounting and Auditing for Transactions in foreign currencies, in Banking industry."
2. The fair value is calculated based on the discounted present value.

Bond-related transactions (as of March 31, 2016)

(Millions of yen)

July 29, 2002. "Treatment for

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge accounting

Contract amounts

Contract amounts

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Bond futures Other Securities | ¥ — — ¥ — |8 — — $ -
Total — — — ¥ o - — — $ —

Bond-related transactions (as of March 31, 2015)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting

Contract amounts

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method | Bond futures Other Securities | ¥ 5,000 - ¥ 32
Total — — — ¥ 32

The fair value of over-the-counter transactions is calculated based on the option pricing models.

17. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries have defined-benefit corporation pension funds and lump-sum retirement benefits. Certain consolidated subsidiaries
use a simplified method for calculating retirement benefit expenses and liabilities. The following table sets forth the funded and accrued status of the plans and
the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the Bank's and the consolidated subsidiaries' defined retirement benefit plans:

(1) The changes on the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Retirement benefit obligation at ...y 15202 ¥ 15348 $ 134,913
the beginning of the year
Cumulative effect of change ... - 201 —
in accounting principle
Restated balance at the ... 15,202 15,639 134,913
beginning of the year
Service CoSt..vvvvneervinin. 453 411 4,020
Interest cost....vvnevvneennnes 166 218 1,473
Actuarial gain/loss ......... 1,973 1 17.509
Retirement benefits paid ... (724) (1,069) (6,425)
Prior service cost ......... - — -
Other «ovvvvviiiiiiiiiiin, — — —
Retirement benefit obligation. ..
at the end of the year ¥ 17,071 ¥ 15,202 $ 151,499

(2) The changes in plan assets during the year ended March 31, 2016 and

2015 are as follows:
2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Plan assets at the beginning of the year... ¥ 17,064 ¥ 14,664 $ 151,437
Expected return on plan assets ... 187 219 1,659
Actuarial gain/loss......... (275) 1,653 (2,440)
Contributions by employers ... 825 1,535 7,321
Contributions by employees ... 60 59 532
Retirement benefits paid ... (724) (1,068) (6,425)
Other c..ovvviiiiiiinie - — =

Plan assets at the end of the year... ¥ 17,136 ¥ 17,064 $ 152,076

(3) The following table sets forth the funded status of the plans and the
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2016 and 2015 for the bank’s and the Consolidated subsidiaries’ defined

benefit plans:
2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Funded retirement benefit obligation... ¥ 17,024 ¥ 15,159 $ 151,082
Plan assets at fair value ... (17,136) (17,064) (152,076)
(112) (1,905) (993)
Unfunded retirement benefit obligation. ... 47 42 417
Net liability for retirement benefits. .. (65) (1,862) (576)
in the consolidated balance sheet
Liability for retirement benefits... 47 42 417
Net defined benefit-assets... 112 1,905 (993)
Net liability for retirement benefits ...
¥ (65) ¥ (1,862) $ (576)

in consolidated balance sheet

18. Segment Information

1. Outline of reportable segments

(4) The components of retirement benefit expense for the year ended March
31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Service Cost «vvverrviieiiiinnnis ¥ 393 ¥ 351 $ 3,487
Interest cost «-vvviiiinnnin 166 218 1,473
Expected return on plan assets -- - (187) (219) (1,659)
Amortization of actuarial gain/loss cost - - - (201) (53) (1,783)
Amortization of prior service cost -- - - - -
Other «vvvvvvviiiiiiii —_ — —_
Retirement benefit expense .- ¥ 171 ¥ 296 $ 1,517
Notes

1. Concerning the consolidated subsidiaries that use a simplified method,
all of the retirement benefit cost is included in the service cost.

2. Service cost does not include the amounts contributed by employees
with respect to corporate pension fund plans.

(5) The components of retirement benefits liability adjustments included in
other comprehensive income (before tax effect) for the years ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Prior service cost............... ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Actuarial gain and loss (2,450) 1,597 (21,742)
Other . . - - -
Total oo ¥ (2,450) ¥ 1,597 $ (21,742)

(6) Unrecognized prior service cost and unrecognized actuarial loss
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (before tax
effect) as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Unrecognized prior service cost ... ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Unrecognized actuarial gain/loss ... (808) 1,641 (7,170)
Other ... - - -
Total oo ¥ (808) ¥ 1,641 $ (7,170

(7) The fair value of plan assets, by major category, as a percentage of
total plan assets as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015

Bonds ... 33% 31%
33% 38%

28% 25%

6% 6%

Total ..o 100% 100%

Notes

1. The expected long-term return on assets has been estimated based on
the anticipated allocation to each asset class and the expected
long-term return on assets held in each category.

(8) The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans are as follows:
2016 2015

1) Discountrate: ............ccccoeviiiiinniinn. 0.4% 1.1%
2) Expected rate of long-term return on assets: ... 1.1% 1.5%

Reportable segments are components for which separate financial information is available and that are subject to periodic examination by the Board of
Directors to determine the allocation of management resources and assess performances.
The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise of the Bank and 7 consolidated subsidiaries that are engaged in the financial services business that

includes mainly banking services as well as leasing services.

Therefore, the reportable segments of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise ‘Banking’ and ‘Leasing’ that are distinguished by the type

of the business.

‘Banking’ includes deposit taking, lending, investment in securities and exchange services.
‘Leasing’ represents lease business by Yamagin Lease Co., Ltd. , one of the consolidated subsidiaries.
2. Calculation method of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment
The accounting policies in Note 3, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, are adopted for the reportable segments.

Reportable segment profit corresponds to ordinary profits.

Ordinary income arising from intersegment transactions is based on arm’ s length prices.
3. The Bank has changed its depreciation method for tangible fixed assets, except for lease assets, from the declining-balance method to the straight-line

method, effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016.

Under the long term Management plan, “YAMAGIN innovation plan " starting from this fiscal year, the Bank plans to replace ATMs and renovate
branches, office machineries and equipments, and other tangible fixed assets would be used constantly over long periods of time. Consequently, contem-
plating the fixed nature of the value in use throughout the useful life of the assets, the Bank decided to change its depreciation method of tangible fixed

assets to the straight-line method to more accurately reflect business conditions.

As a result of this change, reportable segment profit of the Banking segment for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by ¥ 99 million.
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4. Information of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment . Consolidated
Other Total Adjustments financial statements
Banking Leasing Total
Ordinary income
External customers ¥ 38,861 ¥ 4772 ¥ 43633 |[¥ 1,711 ¥ 45344 |¥ (92) ¥ 45,252
Intersegment 236 118 354 704 1,059 (1,059) —
Total 39,097 4,890 43,987 2,416 46,403 (1,151) 45,252
Segment profit 9,934 190 10,124 633 10,757 (10) 10,747
Segment assets 2,492,740 13,152 2,505,893 16,362 2,522,255 (18,582) 2,503,672
Segment liabilities 2,344,078 9,171 2,353,249 11,261 2,364,510 (16,782) 2,347,728
Other items
Depreciation 1,235 14 1,249 4 1,253 - 1,253
Interest income 26,237 3 26,240 121 26,362 (153) 26,208
Interest expense 2,708 66 2,775 54 2,829 (98) 2,730
Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,999 59 2,059 0 2,060 - 2,060
Year ended March 31, 2015 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment . Consolidated
Other Total Adjustments financial statements
Banking Leasing Total
Ordinary income
External customers ¥ 39290 |¥ 4,638 ¥ 43929 |¥ 2014 ¥ 45944 | ¥ 26 ¥ 45,970
Intersegment 191 115 307 613 921 (921) —
Total 39,482 4,754 44,236 2,628 46,865 (895) 45,970
Segment profit 11,607 193 11,801 889 12,690 29 12,719
Segment assets 2,453,358 13,308 2,466,667 16,671 2,483,338 (16,459) 2,466,878
Segment liabilities 2,307,123 9,452 2,316,575 11,917 2,328,492 (16,308) 2,312,184
Other items
Depreciation 1,159 15 1,175 6 1,181 — 1,181
Interest income 26,402 3 26,406 140 26,546 (102) 26,444
Interest expense 2,662 67 2,730 53 2,783 (95) 2,688
Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,624 64 1,689 - 1,689 — 1,689
Year ended March 31, 2016 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Reportable segment
> 8 Other Total Adjustments fin a(njcc:)igfiltigfeﬁdent s
Banking Leasing Total
Ordinary income
External customers $ 344,879 $ 42,350 $ 387,229 $ 15,184 $ 402,413 $ (816) $ 401,597
Intersegment 2,094 1,047 3,141 6,247 9,398 (9,398) -
Total 346,973 43,397 390,370 21,441 411,812 (10,214) 401,597
Segment profit 88,161 1,686 89,847 5617 95,465 (88) 95,376
Segment assets 22,122,293 116,719 22,239,022 145,207 22,384,229 (164,909) 22,219,311
Segment liabilities 20,802,964 81,389 20,884,353 99,937 20,984,291 (148,935) 20,835,356
Other items
Depreciation 10,960 124 11,084 35 11,119 - 11,119
Interest income 232,845 26 232,871 1,073 233,954 (1,357) 232,587
Interest expense 24,032 585 24,627 479 25,106 (869) 24,227
Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 17,740 523 18,272 0 18,281 - 18,281

Notes

1. Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
2. "Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, credit guarantee service, data processing, credit

card business, venture capital business, etc.
3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

(1) "Ordinary income for External customers" is elimination related to provision of reserve for loan losses.

(2) "Adjustments for segment profit" are eliminations of intersegment transactions.

4. "Segment profit" corresponds to ordinary income(net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.

5. Related information
Information by service
Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 18,782 ¥ 13,269 ¥ 4,710 ¥ 8,489 ¥ 45,252
Year ended March 31, 2015 (Millions of yen)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 19,123 ¥ 11,959 ¥ 4,631 ¥ 10,255 ¥ 45,970
Year ended March 31, 2016 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers $ 166,684 $ 117,758 $ 41,799 $ 75,337 $ 401,597

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct banking and other related activities in Japan without having foreign subsidiaries

or foreign branches.

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers having over a 10% share of ordinary income.

6. Information concerning the impairment loss of fixed assets by reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2016

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Total
Impairment loss ¥ 27 ¥ — ¥ 27 ¥ ¥ 27
Year ended March 31, 2015 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Total
Impairment loss ¥ 130 ¥ — ¥ 130 ¥ ¥ 130
Year ended March 31, 2016 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Total
Impairment loss $ 239 $ — $ 239 $ $ 239

19. Amounts Per Stock

Amounts per stock of net income and net assets, as presented below, are based on
the weighted average number of stocks of common stock outstanding during each
year and the number of stocks outstanding at each balance sheet date,

respectively. 20 1 6 20 1 5 20 1 6

(Yen) (U.S. dollars)
Net income ¥ 4108 ¥ 4562 $ 0.36
Net assets ¥ 904.81 ¥ 900.00 $ 8.02
Diluted
net income ¥ 3667 ¥ 41.00 $ 0.32

The basis for the calculation of net income per stock for the year ended March 31,
2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015 2016

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net income attributable

to owners to the parent ¥ 6,714 ¥ 7,483 $ 59,584

Amount not attributable

to common stock: - — -

Net income attributable to owners

to the parent related to common stock 6,714 7,483 59,584

Weighted average

number of stocks of

common stock outstanding 163,442 164,015 163,442
thousand thousand thousand

Effect of dilutive securities

bonds with stock acquisition rights 19,646 18,516 19,646
thousand thousand thousand
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20. Financial Instruments

1. Matters relating to the state of financial instruments
(1) Policy for financial instruments

The Yamagata Bank group (referred to as the “Bank” below)
provides financial services mainly connected with the banking
business including deposits, loans, buying and selling trading
securities and security investments. In the banking business, which
is the main business of the Bank, funds are raised by means such as
accepting deposits and borrowing money from the call money
market, and are invested by providing loans and buying securities.
Financial assets and liabilities are susceptible to interest rate
fluctuations, so the Bank bears market risk, which is the risk of loss
caused by changes in financial market conditions (for example,
interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk), and the risk of failing to
raise sufficient funds.

The Bank performs comprehensive asset and liability management
(ALM) to appropriately control the balance of profit and risk in a way
that suits fund raising and investment policy as well as taking into
consideration the state of assets and liabilities and the trends of the
financial and capital markets. The Bank uses derivatives as part of
such management.

(2) Nature and risk of financial instruments

The Bank's financial assets consist mainly of loans to domestic
companies and individuals, and the Bank is exposed to the credit
risks arising from customers' default on their loans. Securities mainly
consist of stocks, bonds and investment trusts, some of which are
held until the maturity date, others are held for purposes such as
investment and business promotion. Those securities are exposed to
credit risk of the relevant issuer, the risks of fluctuations in interest
rates and market prices.

Deposits, call money, etc., that are financial liabilities have interest
rate fluctuation risks caused by differences in interest rates and the
periods between financial liabilities and financial assets. Financial
liabilities also have the funding risk of loss due to inability to raise
funds, because of reasons such as unexpected outflow of funds, and
by raising funds at interest rates much higher than the normal rate
because of unavoidable reasons; and the market liquidity risk of loss
caused by the inability to raise the required funds because of
disruption such as a credit crunch in the entire market and by
trading at prices greatly disadvantageous compared with the normal
price.

(3) Risk management for financial Instruments

i. Credit risk management
The Bank measures the risk amount through credit judgments,
credit ratings and self-assessments, attaching importance to the
public good, safety, growth potential and profitability, and controls
the risk on the principle of elimination of concentration with
specific customers, in accordance with credit policy (lending
standards), which states the basic ideas about lending, the code
of conduct and other matters, and with the credit risk management
rules, which specify credit risk management methods.
The Bank's credit review division and sales promotion division are
separated to ensure independence of each other and stringent
credit risk management.
The Bank conducts rigorous self-assessment, which includes
audits by the audit division, from the aspect of securing the
soundness of the assets. Based on the results, the Bank appropri-
ately writes off bad debts and sets aside reserves.
The Bank has a credit rating system for business loans to
understand the true state of companies from both guantitative and
qualitative aspects.
To reduce and offset credit risk, the Bank receives collateral and
guarantees for lending transactions and offsets loans against
deposits. The basic ideas about security are stated in the credit
policy, and security assessments, management policies and
procedures are set out in the operation manual.
Measurement method and procedures for credit risk amount are
stipulated in the operation manual and the risk is measured
monthly based on the borrowers' credit rating and other factors.
The results are reported to the ALM Council (the board of
managing directors).

ii.Market risk management
a.Interest rate risk management

The Bank's interest rate fluctuation risk is managed by ALM.

Risk management methodology and procedures are stated in
detail in the rules and manuals related to ALM. Present
conditions are checked, state of execution is checked and future
actions are discussed by the ALM Council, based on the
outcome of the deliberations of the ALM Committee.
Risks are monitored using methodology such as basis point
value (BPV) and value at risk (VaR), and mainly with gap
analyses and interest rate sensitivity analyses, and the results
are reported monthly to the ALM Council. As part of ALM,
derivatives such as interest rate swap transactions are
conducted to hedge interest rate risks.
b.Price fluctuation risk management
Trading and management of investment instruments such as
securities are performed in accordance with the investment
policy and risk management policy as determined by the board
of directors half-yearly. The Middle Section of the Financial
Market Division and the Risk Control Section of the General
Planning & Coordinations Division measure market risk for
securities investments quantitatively and comprehensively using
VaR, etc. The results are reported to the relevant directors, the
ALM Council, etc., with the frequency set for each financial
instrument to check the state of compliance with the rule.
c.Quantitative information concerning market risk
The principal financial instruments that are subject to interest rate
risk and price fluctuation risk, which are the main risk variables
affecting the Bank, are loans and bills discounted, securities,
deposits and derivatives transactions.
The variance-covariance method (holding period: 90 days*,
confidence interval: 99%, observation period: 250 business days)
was used for the calculation of VaR, the market risk volume. The
volume of overall market risk (estimated loss) as of March 31,
2016 (consolidated accounts settlement date) and 2015 were
¥ 31,581 million ($280,271 thousand) and ¥ 23,427 million.
The Bank believes that the measurement model estimates market
risk with sufficient accuracy because the Bank examines the
model by means such as performing backtesting to compare the
VaR calculated using the model with the actual profit and loss.
However, VaR measures market risk volume with a certain
probability that is calculated statistically based on historical
market movements, and therefore VaR may fail to represent risk in
the case of exceptionally drastic change in market conditions.
* Holding period for shares purchased for the business relation-
ship, which are included in the securities: 125 days.
jiii.Liquidity risk management
Sections managing liquidity risks at the Bank are clearly stated in
the liquidity risk management rule that stipulate the liquidity risk
management procedures, system and so on. The Bank has a
management system to secure sufficient liquidity in case of
unexpected events by setting liquidity standards for various cases
including times of normality, times of concern, and times of
emergency.

(4) Supplementary explanation of fair values, of financial instruments
Fair value of financial instruments includes market price as well as
reasonably determined value where market price is unavailable.The
reasonably determined value could differ depending on different
conditions and assumptions because calculation of such value is
conducted based on certain conditions and assumptions.

2. Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying amount and fair value, as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
difference between the values are shown in the table below. Unlisted
stocks and others whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to
determine are not listed in the table (see Note 2). Accounts considered to
be immaterial are omitted.

<March 31, 2016>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 106,159 |¥ 106,159 |¥ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 8,467 8,626 158
Other securities 726,749 726,749 —
(8) Loans and bills discounted | 1,584,509
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (5,993)
1,578,516 | 1,609,083 | 30,567
Total assets 2,419,892 | 2,450,619 | 30,726
(1) Deposits 2,075,390 | 2,075,885 494
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 119,845 119,849 3
(3) Payables under securities 35,130 35,130 —
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 48,088 48,306 217
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 11,268 10,776 (491)
Total liabilities 2,289,723 | 2,289,949 225
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 860 860 —
To which hedge accounting is applied (4,935) (4,935) =
Total derivatives ¥ (4,074) | ¥ (4,074) |¥ —
<March 31, 2015> (Millions of yen)
Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 79,775 |¥ 79,775 |¥ —
(2) Call loans and bills purchased 34,597 34,597 —
(3) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 8,719 8,790 71
Other securities 808,628 808,628 —
(4) Loans and bills discounted | 1,470,267
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (5,684)
1,464,582 1,486,778 | 22,196
Total assets 2,396,302 | 2,418,570 | 22,267
(1) Deposits 2,036,421 2,036,831 409
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 103,112 103,118 6
(3) Call money and bills sold 39,980 39,980 -
(4) Payables under securities 25,214 25214 —
leading transactions
(5) Borrowed money 46,915 46,818 (96)
(6) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 12,017 11,702 (314)
Total liabilities 2,263,660 2,263,665 4
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied (180) (180) -
To which hedge accounting is applied (4,453) (4,453) —
Total derivatives ¥ (4,634) | ¥ (4,634) |¥ —
<March 31, 2016> (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks |$ 942,128 |$ 942,128 | $ -
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 75,141 76,553 1,402
Other securities 6,449,671 6,449,671 -
(8) Loans and bills discounted | 14,062,025
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (53,186)
14,008,839 | 14,280,111 | 271,272
Total assets 21,475,789 | 21,748,482 | 272,683
(1) Deposits 18,418,441 | 18,422,834 4,384
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 1,063,587 1,063,622 26
(3) Payables under securities 311,767 311,767 -
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 426,766 428,700 1,925
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 100,000 95,633 (4,357)
Total liabilities 20,320,580 | 20,322,586 1,996
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 7,632 7,632 -
To which hedge accounting is applied (43,796) (43,796) —
Total derivatives $ (36,155 |$ (36.155) | $ -

(*1) General reserve and specific reserve for possible loan losses correspond-

ing to loans and bills discounted are deducted.

(*2) Derivative transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are

presented on a net basis.

Note 1 Method to calculate fair values of financial instruments

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks
Concerning due from banks without maturity, the carrying amount is
reported as fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount. Concerning due from banks with maturity, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the remaining periods
are as short as less than one year, and the fair value is approximately the
same as the carrying amount.

(2) Securities
Fair value of stocks is determined based on the exchange price, and that
of bonds based on the exchange price or price quoted by the counter party
financial institutions. Fair value of investment trusts is determined based
on the price publicly available. Fair value of privately placed guaranteed
bonds is calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and
interest at an interest rate deemed to be applicable to similar bonds by
categories based on internal ratings and terms of the bonds.

(3) Loans and bills discounted
Fair value of loans and bills discounted is calculated by categorizing the
loans based on the type, internal rating, term (the remaining period or the
period between interest rate renewals), and then discounting the total of
the principals and interest with a rate expected of a new similar loan. For
loans with short remaining periods (less than one year), the carrying
amount is reported as the fair value because the fair value is approxi-
mately the same as the carrying amount.
For receivables from "legally bankrupt”, "virtually bankrupt" and "possibly
bankrupt" borrowers, possible loan losses are estimated based on factors
such as present value of expected future cash flow and expected amounts
to be collected from collateral and guarantees. Since the fair value of
these items approximates the carrying amount net of the currently
expected loan losses at the end of the year, such carrying amount is
presented as fair value.
Concerning loans whose maturity dates were not set because they were
limited to within the values of the collateral offered as securiy, the carrying
amount is reported as fair value because the fair value is expected to be
approximately the same as the carrying amount considering expected
periods of repayments and the terms of interest rate.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits, and (2) negotiable certificates of deposit
Concerning demand deposits, the amounts to be paid if such deposits
were withdrawn on the end of the year (book values) are regarded as fair
value. Time deposits are separated by period, and the present value is
calculated by discounting the future cash flow. The discount rate is the
rate used for new deposit-taking. For those with short remaining periods
(less than one year), their carrying amount is reported as the fair value
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions.
Call loans and bills purchased the carrying amount is reported as fair
value for call money and bills sold, and payables under securities lending
transactions because they have short maturity (less than one year), and
the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(4) Borrowed money
Fair value of borrowed money is calculated by discounting the total
amount of the principal and interest of such borrowed money classified by
the type, internal rating and the remaining period at the interest rates
considered to be applicable to new similar borrowed money. The fair value
of short-term borrowed money with remaining period as of the end of the
fiscal year not exceeding one year is based on the carrying amount
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights
Call loans and bills purchased the carrying amount is reported as fair
value for bonds with stock acquisition rights because they have short
maturity (less than one year), and the fair value is approximately the same
as the carrying amount.

Derivative transactions
Matters related to derivatives transactions are as stated in the Note 16 "Fair
Value Information on Derivatives'.
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Note 2 Financial instruments whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine were as follows. These were not included in the Asset, "(2)
Securities" in "Fair value of financial instruments".

<March 31, 2016>

Carrying amount

Category —
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Unlisted stocks (*1)(*2) ¥ 1,608 $ 14,270
Investment in Partnerships (*3) and others 4,339 38,507
Total ¥ 5,948 $ 52,786

<March 31, 2015>

Carrying amount

Category Millions of yen
Unlisted stocks (*1) (*2) ¥ 1,521
Investment in Partnerships (*3) and others 2,744
Total ¥ 4,266

<March 31, 2016>

(*1) Unlisted stocks are not subject to fair value disclosure because of the extreme

difficulty in determining their fair values as they are not sold in the market.

previous consolidated fiscal year.
Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥2 million ($26
thousand) in this consolidated fiscal year.

(*2) Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ 1 million in the

(*3) In the case that partnership assets consist of unlisted stocks whose fair value

is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine, investment in partnerships is
not subject to fair value disclosure.

Note 3 Scheduled redemption amounts of financial assets and securities with maturities

(Millions of yen)

<March 31, 2016 >

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 year or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Due from banks ¥ 106,159 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Securities 100,520 176,184 169,429 73,598 106,063 57,823
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,895 3,039 2,898 634 — —
Corporate bonds 1,895 3,039 2,898 634 — =
Other securities with a maturity date 98,625 173,144 166,531 72,964 106,063 57,823
Japanese government bonds 45,160 66,281 93,413 43,253 46,711 35,960
Municipal bonds 12,767 43,058 11,025 4,355 7,986 20,962
Corporate bonds 19,599 35,799 27,423 9,255 10,306 -
Other 21,097 28,005 34,667 16,099 41,058 900
Loans and bills discounted (*) 390,363 301,529 244,335 149,646 166,337 314,003
Total ¥ 597,043 | ¥ 477,713 | ¥ 413,765 | ¥ 223,244 | ¥ 272,400 | ¥ 371,827

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to "Legally bankrupt" borrowers, loan to "Virtually bankrupt”

borrowers, loan to "Possibly bankrupt" borrowers, amounting to ¥ 18,294 million ($ 162,353 thousand) is not included in the above table.

<March 31, 2015>

(Millions of yen)

oo | | 5o v | 5 veors tvousn | 7 e veuen | Due st
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Due from banks ¥ 79,775 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Call loans and bills purchased 34,597 — — - — —
Securities 74,379 187,423 245,997 103,694 104,124 45,731
Held-to-maturity bonds 2,829 2,852 2,455 581 — —
Corporate bonds 2,829 2,852 2,455 581 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 71,550 184,571 243,542 103,112 104,124 45,731
Japanese government bonds 37,167 87,152 98,740 52,968 48,902 21,363
Municipal bonds 9,568 22,646 68,422 4,630 8,320 22,562
Corporate bonds 15117 46,208 34,871 14,754 7,435 -
Other 9,696 28,563 41,507 30,757 39,465 1,805
Loans and bills discounted (*) 378,841 278,965 238,686 140,043 147,753 264,837
Total ¥ 567,594 | ¥ 466,388 | ¥ 484,684 | ¥ 243,737 | ¥ 251,878 | ¥ 310,569

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to "Legally bankrupt" borrowers, loan to "Virtually bankrupt"
borrowers, loan to "Possibly bankrupt" borrowers, amounting to ¥ 21,138 million is not included in the above table.

o | e | 5 vem e | 5 vews pveusn | 7 vows pveuen | Dueattr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Due from banks $ 942,128 | $ - $ —|$ —|$ —| 8 —
Securities 892,083 1,563,578 1,503,629 653,159 941,276 513,161
Held-to-maturity bonds 16,817 26,970 25,718 5,626 - —
Corporate bonds 16,817 26,970 25,718 5,626 - —
Other securities with a maturity date 875,266 1,536,599 1,477,910 647,532 941,276 513,161
Japanese government bonds 400,780 588,223 829,011 383,856 414,545 319,133
Municipal bonds 113,303 382,126 97,843 38,649 70,873 186,031
Corporate bonds 173,935 317,705 243,370 82,135 91,462 —
Other 187,229 248,535 307,658 142,873 364,376 7,987
Loans and bills discounted 3,464,350 2,675,976 2,168,397 1,328,061 1,476,189 2,786,679
Total $ 5,298,571 | $ 4,239,554 | $ 3,672,035 | $ 1,981,221 | $ 2,417,465 | $ 3,299,849
Note 4 Scheduled repayment amounts of bonds, borrowed money and other interest bearing liabilities
<March 31, 2016> (Millions of yen)
1 yeDe;eo:r}ess 1 %ﬁ ?i::g[lgh 3 ysaures ?r]:triijgh 5 yzgssilf'forugh 7 ygauri ?ritr?)rugh ?Seyzgresr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits (*) ¥ 1,875,892 | ¥ 188,562 | ¥ 10,936 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 118,889 956 - - - -
Payable under securities lending transactions 35,130 - - - - —
Borrowed money 46,248 1,406 432 — - —
Bonds with stock acquisition right - - 11,268 - - -
Total ¥ 2,076,161 | ¥ 190,925 | ¥ 22,637 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
*Demand deposits are included in "Due in 1 year or less".
<March 31, 2015> (Millions of yen)
1y e s 1 3%;? tahf:ngh 3 ygéﬁ ?rfwtrihgh 5 yngsatﬁféugh 7 yg:res ?rf]trirugh ?geyggg
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits (*) ¥ 1,848,137 | ¥ 161,009 | ¥ 27,275 | ¥ — | ¥ —| ¥ —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 101,792 1,320 — — - —
Call money and bills sold 39,980 - — — - -
Payable under securities lending transactions 25,214 - - - - —
Borrowed money 44,919 1,515 480 — — -
Bonds with stock acquisition right - - 12,017 — - -
Total ¥ 2,060,043 | ¥ 163,844 | ¥ 39,772 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ -
*Demand deposits are included in "Due in 1 year or less".
<March 31, 2016> (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
1 y(;t'r'eomess 1 3I/Deuaer z;::g[lgh 3 ygauri ?ritrirugh 5 yzgssigreorugh 7 yggres ?r?ri[;gh ?geygfat:asr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits $ 16,647,958 | $ 1,673,429 $ 97,053 | $ —$ R -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,055,102 8,484 — — — —
Payable under securities lending transactions 311,767 — — — — —
Borrowed money 410,436 12,477 3,833 - - -
Bonds with stock acquisition right - - 100,000 — - —
Total $ 18,425,283 | $ 1,694,400 | $ 200,896 | $ -$ -8 -

25



26

Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.
and its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31,
2016, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in net assets,
and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing
and operating such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara-
tion and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo-
sures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated finan-
cial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial
statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, but in
making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's prepa-
ration and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appro-
priateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd. and its consolidated subsid-
iaries as at March 31, 2016, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars,
presented for the convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been properly translated on the basis described in Note 2.

June 23, 2016
Yamagata, Japan
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Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2016 and 2015

Assets
Cash and due from

banks.........coceiiiiinnnn.

Call 10aANS ...

Monetary claims bought

Trading securities

SECUMTIES ..ottt e

Foreign exchange
Other assets  ......

Tangible fixed assets ...

Buildings .........

AN e
Leased @SSEIS ...i.iiiiiiii i

Constraction in p

FOBIESS t.evnvveveininannennn.
Other tangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets ......................

Software .........

Other intangible fixed assets
Prepaid pension cost

Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ..................

Reserve for possible loan losses

TOtal @SSETS ...t

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Deposits ............

Negotiable certificate of deposits

Call MONBY et

Payables under securities lending transactions

BOIrOWEd MONEY ... .ttt

Foreign exchange

Bonds with stock acquisition rights

Other liabilities ...

Reserve for bonuses to directors
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits ...
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for losses on contingencies
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land ..................

Acceptance and guarantees

Total liabilities ...

Net Assets

COMMON STOCK  ..eititiit e e
Capital SUMPIUS ... e s

Retained earnings

Treasury STOCK ..o e

Total Shareholder's equity

Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale .........

Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments

Revaluation of land
Total ....ccceevinnin
Total of net assets

Total of liabilities and net assets

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
106,153 79,765 $ 942,083
15,149 34,597 134,449
5,093 7,273 45,200
28 40 252
741,114 821,553 6,577,157
1,593,372 1,479,318 14,140,683
1,236 1,028 10,975
5,051 4,484 44,828
13,645 13,673 121,096
3,563 3,665 31,621
8,789 8,985 78,004
54 72 487
111 68 986
1,126 881 9,996
1,603 994 14,229
1,389 780 12,335
213 214 1,894
921 263 8,176
14,157 14,853 125,647
(5,503) (5,205) $ (48,841)
2,492,023 2,452,641 22,115,938
2,706,500 2,037,551 $ 18,428,296
125,885 109,092 1,117,195
15,211 39,980 135,000
35,130 25214 311,775
45,171 43,893 400,878
38 57 340
11,268 12,017 100,000
11,820 13,195 104,899
25 21 221
264 302 2,347
55 78 488
220 214 1,960
7,002 9,230 62,146
1,325 1,420 11,766
14,157 14,853 $ 125,647
2,344,078 2,307,123 20,802,964
12,008 12,008 $ 106,572
4,932 4,932 43,774
112,119 106,352 995,029
(2,976) (2,972) (26,416)
126,084 120,321 1,118,960
24,110 26,862 213,975
(3,431) (2,845) (30,451)
1,182 1,179 10,490
21,861 25,197 194,013
147,945 145,518 1,312,974
2,492,023 2,452,641 $ 22,115,938
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended March 31. 2016 and 2015

Ordinary INCOMe oo
Interest Income
Interest on loans and discounts  «--weveeiiiii.
Interest and dividendsS ON SECUNTIES <+« veevverrerreeneemerieenienenns
INterest 0N Call [0ANS «ccvvetrrretrintiiiiiii e
Interest on deposits with banks
Other INterest ««-eveeveveemereneenennnne.
Fees and COMMUISSIONS -« «c xveernntetmmmttmteenteiiteaierieeeiieeanneeenns
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------
Other fees and COMMISSIONS  «««cveerererreneanenerneneanenereneeneneanen
Other operating iNCOME  +++vxreervmereinieriieeeieeiieeee,
Gains on foreign exchange transactions
Gains on sales of trading securities «---veveoeeeeenninn.
GaiNS ON SAIES Of DONAS  «-vvevverrermtenmenteteneeiteneaeaieeneanenns
10 11>
Other INCOME «evvvetnmteeite i
Reversal on allowance for loan losses
Recoveries of written off claims «-.-vvovveeeeiiiin
Gains on sales of stocks and other securities «----ovvveeiininninns
10 11>

Ordinary Expenses .........................................................

INterest EXPENSE  «-vvvvrimiiiiiiiii
Interest on depPOSItS - +vververmermermireiiiiii
Interest on negotiable certificate of deposits
Interest on call MONEY -+ vevrervmrrniiiiiiiiii
Interest on payables under securities lending transsaction  ---------
Interest on borrowings and rediscounts
Interest on iNterest SWapPS — «-cvvveevreenrernneineieeine.
Other interest  ««ceevvevveveeeiiiiiiinnn.

Fees and commissions payments
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------
Other fees and COMMISSIONS  «««xeerererremtarenernentanenereneenennnen

Other operating EXPENSE «« -« cvvrerenerrerinerineiieiieeis
Loss on foreign exchange transactions
LOSS ON SAIES Of DONAS «-vcvvemremmemmteitentiieie i eieeaeenens
Expenses on derivatives other than for trading or hedging ------
10 )1

General and administrative expenses

Other EXPENSES -+ vvvvvrrutuiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Provision on allowance for loan losses
Written-Off Of 08NS «+-«cveerermeemmeniii e eieens
Losses on sales of stocks and other securities  «----vocoeveenininns
Losses on devaluation of stocks and other securities  --------.--.
OFhEI «eeveeeenieiaiiii e

Ordinary Profit

Extraordinary income
Gain on disposal of non-current assets «-----ocoveeenns
EXtraordinary [0SSES «««««txueevureuurtunmiieiiaiiaiiaiieeinns
Loss on disposal of non-current assets «----.ocveveenenns
IMPAIMENT [0SS -+ vvrmrneieiiiiiiii e

Income before income taxes

INCome taxes-CUIrENt -««-vceveeeennens
Income taxes-deferred --..cooeoennnnnn
Total INCOME TAXES  <vvevvrrernmmttmtetitii ittt eiee e

Net INCOME oo
Amounts per share:

Net income
Net assets

2016 2015 2016
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
39,097 ¥ 39,482 $ 346,975
26,237 26,402 232,853
18,409 18,840 163,379
7,666 7,316 68,037

51 88 460
11 18 105
98 139 870
6,449 6,398 57,236
1,580 1,591 14,027
4,868 4,807 43,209
2,138 3,698 18,978
— 73 —
4 0 38
2,133 2,466 18,938
0 1,158 2
4,271 2,982 37,906
—_ 85 —
4 0 39
3,500 2,122 31,066
766 773 6,799
29,163 27,874 258,813
2,708 2,662 24,039
1,297 1,273 11,518
153 134 1,358
25 15 224
76 26 678
58 43 521
1,034 1,086 9,183
62 81 554
2,469 2,598 21,914
350 351 3,111
2,118 2,247 18,802
1,728 1,118 15,343
74 - 662
1,582 251 14,041
72 9 639
- 857 -
20,906 21,268 185,538
1,349 226 11,977
722 - 6,409
— 1 —
428 50 3,803
2 1 26
195 173 1,738
9,934 11,607 88,161
—_ 0 —_
— 0 —
124 271 1,103
96 140 856
27 130 247
9,809 11,337 87,057
3,308 3,004 29,363
(184) 1,051 (1,639)
3,123 4,056 27,724
6,685 ¥ 7,280 $ 59,333
2016 2015 2016
(yen) (yen) (U.S.dollars)
40.91 44.39 0.36
905.22 890.31 8.03

Directory

Headquarters:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Financial Markets Division:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 634 7547
Fax:+81 23 625 7185
S.W.LF.T.: YAMBJPJT

Foreign Exchange Offices:
Head Office
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Yonezawa Branch

1-5, Monto-machi 3-chome, Yonezawa 992-0039,Japan
Phone:+81 238 22 2010

Nagai Branch

11-14,Sakae-machi, Nagai 993-0084,Japan
Phone:+81 238 88 2105

Sagaechuo Branch

2-33, Chuo 1-chome, Sagae 991-0021,Japan
Phone:+81 237 86 1141

Tendo Branch

9-1,Higashihoncho 1-chome, Tendo 994-0026,Japan
Phone:+81 23 653 3355

Shinjo Branch

2-16, Hon-cho, Shinjo 996-0027,Japan

Phone:+81 233 22 2461

Tsuruoka Branch

1-13, Hon-cho 2-chome, Tsuruoka 997-0034,Japan
Phone:+81 235 22 5530

Sakata Branch

10-1, Hon-cho 3-chome, Sakata 998-0043,Japan
Phone:+81 234 22 7222

Tokyo Branch

5-16, Kyobashi 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0031,Japan
Phone:+81 3 3567 1861

Bank Data: (As of March 31, 2016)
Date of Incorporation: 1896

Authorized Stocks: 298,350,000

Issued Stocks: 170,000,000

Number of Shareholders: 8,306

Number of Employees: 1,316

The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.

Yurihonjo
Akita district: 1 branch

Yamagata
Yamagata district: Head Office s dai
and 69 branches 17 endai

Miyagi district: 6 branches

Saitama Koriyama
Saitama district: 1 branch Fukushima dlsi:lcl. 1 branch
Utsunomiya

Tochigi district: 1 branch

Tokyo
Tokyo district: 1 branch

(Total: Head Office and 80 branches)
(As of June 30, 2016)

Cherries
Cherries are a special product of Yamagata Prefecture.
Stylized cherries are used as the symbol of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.

29



	01
	02
	03

